

Notices: The information in this document is subject to change without notice. NO WARRANTY OF ANY KIND IS MADE CONCERNING THIS MATERIAL, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. No liability is assumed for errors contained herein or for incidental or consequential damages in connection with the furnishing, performance, or use of this material. This document contains proprietary information that is protected by copyright. All rights are reserved. No part of this document may be photocopied, reproduced, or translated into another language without prior written consent.

Trademark Acknowledgments: UNINET and UNINET IColor 250 are registered trademarks of Uninet Imaging, Inc. Windows is a registered trademark of Microsoft Corporation. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

Revision History

Edition 1.2, Copyright 2020, All rights reserved.

FCC Compliance Statement: This device complies with part 15 of the FCC rules. Operation is subject to the following two conditions: (1) this device may not cause harmful interference, and (2) this device must accept any interference received, including interference that may cause undesired operation.

For Users in the United States: This product is intended to be supplied by a UL listed Direct Plug-In Power Supply marked "Class 2" or a UL listed ITE Power Supply marked "LPS" with output rated 12VDC, 5A, or higher. This equipment has been tested and found to comply with the limits for a Class A digital device, according to Part 15 of the FCC Rules. In a domestic environment, this product may cause radio interference, in which case the user may be required to take adequate measures. This equipment generates, uses, and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used in accordance with the instructions, may cause harmful interference to radio communications. However, there is no guarantee that interference will not occur in a particular installation. If this equipment does cause harmful interference to radio or television reception, which can be determined by turning the equipment off and on, the user is encouraged to try to correct the interference by one or more of the following measures:

- Re-orient or relocate the receiving antenna.
- Increase the separation between the equipment and receiver.
- Connect the equipment into an outlet on a circuit different from that to which the receiver is connected.
- Consult the dealer or an experienced radio/TV technician for help.

The use of shielded cables is required to comply with the Class A limits of Part 15 of the FCC Rules. You are cautioned that any changes or modifications not expressly approved in this manual could void your authority to operate and/or obtain warranty service for this equipment.

For Users in Canada: This digital apparatus does not exceed the Class A limits for radio noise for digital apparatus set out on the Radio Interference Regulations of the Canadian Department of Communications. Le present appareil numerique n'emet pas de bruits radioelectriques depassant les limites applicables aux appareils numeriques de la class A prescrites dans le Reglement sur le brouillage radioelectrique edicte par le ministere des Communications du Canada.

© 2020 All rights reserved.

For the most recent version of this manual please visit http://www.IColorprint.com/support

Table of Contents

Section 1: Getting Started	
1A. Choosing a Good Location	4
1B. Unpacking and Inspection	5
1C. Installing the Roll Holders	6
1D. Identifying the Parts	10
Section 2: Media, Cartridges and Knives	13
2A. Label and Roll Specifications	
2B. Installing Digital Die-Cutting Label Stock	
2C. Installing Pre-Die-Cut Label Stock	
2D. Replacing the Digital Die Cutting Knife holder	24
2E. Replacing the Cutting Knife	
2F. Replacing Ink Cartridges	
2G. Adjusting the Gap Sensor Position (Pre-Die-Cut Labels Only)	
Section 3: UNINET IColor PrintHub	
3A. XY Cutting Settings, Knife Pressure and Stretch Factor	33
3B. Using the Cost Estimator	
3C. Set the Gap Sensor Mode (Pre-Die-Cut Labels Only)	
3D. Set the Present/Cut Mode	
3E. Adjusting Print Alignment	40
3F. UNINET IColor PrintHub Settings	
3G. UNINET IColor PrintHub Printer Settings	
3G1. Multiple Printer Support	43
Section 4: Printing and Cutting with IColor CustomCUT Software on PC & Mac	45
4A. Overview IColor CustomCUT	45
4B. IColor CustomCUT Software Activation	
4C. Tutorial: How to Setup a Print and Cut using IColor CustomCUT – Vector File Cut	
4C1. Choosing a Label Size (Page Layout)	
4C2. Import a Vector Image (PDF, AI, EPS, SVG)	50
4C3. Working with Layers in an Imported Vector File	53
4D. Tutorial: How to Setup a Print and Cut using IColor CustomCUT – Contour Cut	55
4D1. Choosing a Label Size (Page Layout)	55
4D2. Import an Image	56
4D3. Trace Image and Create Cut Line	59
4D4. Offset Cut Path	

4E. Setup multiple identical cuts (Duplicate and Array)	64
4F. Print Preview	69
4G. Vector File Specifications for Designer	
Section 5: Printing only to Pre Die-Cut labels	4
5A. Using BarTender for Pre-Die-Cut Printing	71
5B. Add Text, Barcodes and Graphics to a Label in BarTender	
5C. Printing From Other Programs	
5D. Creating a Full Bleed Print	
5E. Printer Driver Settings	82
Section 6: Printing from a Mac	85
6A. Print Utility Settings	
6B. Adjusting Print Alignment Offset / Label Offsets	
6C. Set the Stock Sensor Mode	
6D. Set the Output Mode	
6E. XY Cutter Offsets	91
6F. Printing from Swift Publisher	
6G. Creating a Custom Size – Mac	
6H. Creating a Full Bleed Print	
6I. Printer Driver Settings	
Section 7: Troubleshooting	116
7A. Solving Pre-Die-Cut Print Alignment Problems	
7B. Solving Cut Alignment Offset Problems	
7C. Maintenance	
7D. Cleaning the Output Cutter	
7E. Cleaning the Cartridge	
7F. Technical Support	
Section 8: Technical Specifications	116

Section 1: Getting Started

Say hi to the most versatile and lowest-priced label ink-based printer + die cutter all-in-one solution in the marketplace.

The UNINET IColor 250 is a Desktop ink-based, full color, built-in full die cutter, and full steam ahead for short-run professional label production like you've never experienced before.

The IColor 250 is packed with the IColor CustomCUT Software, which means you don't just cut labels; you model them into your desired shape. This Software includes a robust set of tools to properly layout prints and die-cuts for your UNINET IColor 250 printer. It features capabilities to cut standard label shapes, create contour cuts, import a wide variety of file formats, advanced design tools, and more.

Also, the UNINET IColor 250 comes with superb versatile capabilities for Print only, Cut only or Print and Cut functions, and equipped with an all-in-one high-capacity single ink cartridge technology with built-in print-head (cyan, magenta, yellow, process black) for both pigment and dye-based applications.

This User's Manual is your complete step-by-step guide to quickly and easily setting up and printing with your new IColor 250 Label Printer!

1A. Choosing a Good Location

- Place the printer on a flat surface in a location with adequate air circulation to prevent internal heat buildup.
- Do not place the printer near heat sources such as radiators or air ducts, or in a place subject to direct sunlight, excessive dust, mechanical vibration, or shock.
- Allow for adequate clearance in front of the printer to accommodate the printed label stock as it is leaving the printer to avoid the possibility of binding or jamming of the label stock.
- Allow for 6" of clearance behind the printer to accommodate loop creation during cutting operations. The area directly behind the printer must also not be obstructed by USB or power cables connected to the printer.
- Allow for adequate overhead clearance for opening the top cover to allow easy access to the label stock and ink cartridge. The printer will require 7 inches (17.78 cm) of additional space on the top side to completely open the cover (Total = 16.5" or 41.91 cm).

1B. Unpacking and Inspection

While unpacking your printer, inspect the carton to ensure that no damage has occurred during shipping. Make sure that all supplied accessories are included with your unit. The following items are included in the supply box:

- 1. Power Adapter and Cord
- 2. 6' USB Cable (If another USB cable is used, it must be 6' (2 M) or less)
- 3. Color Dye Ink Cartridge Pigment is also available
- 4. Die Cutting Knife Holder with knife preinstalled
- 5. Label roll holders (Assembly required section 1C)
- 6. Large Roll Hub
- 7. Small Roll Hub
- 8. T8 Allen Key and two screws
- 9. Printed documentation



1C. Installing the Roll Holders

Some light assembly is required before operating the printer. Follow these instructions to install the roll holders.

1. Set the printer on its front so the bottom is facing you.



2. Install the movable label roll holder by attaching the hooked end on the rail. The bottom of the holder will fit in the notch on the printer.



3. Slide the Roll Holder to the far right.



4. Install the roll guide by attaching the hooked end to the rail. The bottom of the holder will fit in the notch on the printer.





icolorprint.com



- 5. Slide the Guide to the stop.
- 6. Locate the remaining roll holder with the protruding wire. Connect the wire to the port on the printer. Tuck the wire inside the cavity.



icolorprint.com

7. Snap the holder in place so the two screw holes line up with the holes on the printer.



- 8. Install the T8 screws using the INCLUDED Allen key or a Torx T8 screwdriver.
- 9. Rotate the printer back on its feet.

1D. Identifying the Parts

This illustration shows the printer from various angles so all-important parts can be identified.



The **Power LED** indicates that the printer is on and ready to receive print jobs.

The Ink LED will illuminate when a cartridge has 10% or less of its ink remaining.

The Pause Button is pressed to pause a job to allow for the loading of label stock and ink cartridges.

The printer pauses after the printing of the current label has finished.

The **Feed Button** is pressed to load label stock if the printer does not automatically detect the stock. When a stock is loaded each press of the button will cause one label or a few inches to be fed through the printer.

The **Unload Button** is pressed to unload label stock after you receive an End of Roll message in UNINET IColor PrintHub. The printer will reverse the label stock through the feed area.

Interior







Section 2: Media, Cartridges, and Knives

2A. Label and Roll Specifications

Two types of media can be used.

1. Digital Die-Cut Labels. If you are using the printer to digitally die-cut your desired shapes and sizes <u>only UNINET label stock is recommended</u>. This media comes from UNINET with a smart chip that identifies the media, tracks the percentage remaining, and automatically sets the sensor type to continuous. You will know it is installed when you see the Digital Die-cut Media percentage in the upper right corner of UNINET IColor PrintHub. If you do not see this indication, the digital die cutter will not be enabled and you will not be able to cut shapes.



The following media types are currently available from UNINET. We will be adding more as additional types are discovered, tested, and validated.

SKU	Media	Description
ICI475X150HG	High Gloss BOPP	Durable Synthetic Polypropylene Media, 150 ft
ICI475X150PG	Premium Gloss Paper	Premium Paper Media, 150 ft
ICI475X100MM	Magnetic Material	White Gloss Magnetic Media, 100 ft

Other media cannot be used even if you take the chip from new/old UNINET media for the following reasons:

- Old chips cannot be reused once they reach 0% remaining.
- Other media has a liner that may be too thin. The liner on UNINET media is specially created for our printer to prevent cut through to the wear strip
- The dust created from cutting through the inkjet printable topcoat can be excessive on some media. This can cause frequent print cartridge clogging and other problems.
- NOTE: The total length of the label material does NOT include the outer layer. If the outer layer is marked or damaged from adhesive or residue, please cut off the appropriate amount so that the leading edge of the media is clean. You will still have the correct material length that you purchased.

icolorprint.com

2. Pre-Die-Cut Labels. A wide variety of pre-die-cut label stock can be used in the printer. This media has the shape already cut on the roll before you load it into the printer. These are available from UNINET. Refer to the specifications and settings in the following sections before ordering custom stock from UNINET.





Note: See table below for Max and Min values in inches and mm.

	Max	Min			
Label Width	5" (127mm)	0.5" (13mm)			
Liner/Media Width	5.125 (130.17mm)	2" (50.8mm)			
Label Height/Length	12" (305mm)	0.5" (13mm)			
Gap Between Labels	10" (253mm)	0.10" (2.5mm)			
Width of Through-Hole	0.5" (12.65mm)	0.25" (6.325mm)			
Gap Sensor Adjustment	2.05" (52mm)	0.40" (10.16mm)			
Range (from right edge)	(see diagram below)				
Reflective/Black Mark Width*	N/A	0.1" (2.54mm)			
Max Outer Diameter (OD)	6.0"(152.4mm)	N/A			
Inner Core Diameter (ID)	3.0" (76.2mm)	3.0" (76.2mm)			
Recommended Total Thickness	.0010" (10 mil)				
(Liner + Label)**)					
Distance from Edge of Media to	The printer assumes a 2mm (1/16") gap.				
Edge of Label	However, this is adjustable via the left margin offset.				

* The Reflective/Black Mark should be opaque to infrared light. The mark should be between the labels. The end of the mark should correspond with the beginning of the label.

** This is the recommended maximum. Two factors determine whether the printer will accept any particular stock thickness:

- 1. The ability of the printer to pull the paper through the print area.
- 2. The ability for the sensor to read through the backing if the sensor is set to die-cut.

If you are printing in continuous or reflective label sensing mode number 2 does not apply. The fact that the printer must read through the backing in die-cut mode will limit the thickness much more than the printer's ability to pull the paper through the print area. However, if you adjust the opacity level of the liner enough to allow the label to be seen by the stock sensor, the thickness will only be limited by the

printer's ability to pull it through the printer area. For these reasons, the weight or thickness of the liner is a variable that cannot easily be defined. UNINET recommends and uses 40# liner with all pre-die-cut label stock.

It is important to test all label stock with the intended printer before ordering large quantities!

Gap Sensor Position Indicator from right edge of media. The position indicator corresponds to the ruler NOT the installed label stock.



icolorprint.com

Roll Specifications



Note on Label Orientation: If you are using an applicator to apply your labels, be sure to order label stock with the correct orientation for your applicator. For example, most applicators will apply the side of the label first, so you will want to print the labels sideways.

Digital Die Cut Media Notes: Even though the width of the media is 4.75 inches, the drive rollers on either side prevent printing in the areas indicated. The knurled rollers that bite into the media to drive it, damage the printable surface in this area. The actual printable area is 4.25 inches.



icolorprint.com

2B. Installing Digital Die-Cutting Label Stock

1. Move the roll holder to the preset position for on-demand digital die-cutting (3rd mark from the left – 1.25")



2. Install the Blue Hub on the open side of the digital die-cutting media.



Note: The green hub is not needed for digital die-cutting and can be stored in the notch on the movable holder.

icolorprint.com

- Note
- 3. Set the roll in place so that the blue pin sits in the notch on the roll holder.

4. Make sure the green chip holder fits in the corresponding green slot on the roll holder.



icolorprint.com

5. Before feeding the label stock, you must plug-in power and switch on the printer.



6. Guide the leading edge of the roll into the feed area. Move the blue guide to the far side.



7. Push until the printer detects the stock, grabs it, and pulls it through the printer.

2C. Installing Pre-Die-Cut Label Stock

1. Move the roll holder to the approximate position which matches the width of the label stock you are installing. You can always fine-tune this later.



2. Install the Green Hub on the right side of the pre-die-cut media.



(User must install Green Hub)

(Hub/Chip comes preinstalled)





3. Install the Blue Hub on the left side of the digital die-cutting media.



4. Set the roll in place so that the blue pin sits in the notch on the roll holder.



5. Make sure the green blank chip holder fits in the corresponding green slot on the roll holder.



6. Before feeding the stock, you must plug-in power and switch on the printer.



7. Guide the leading edge of the roll into the feed area. Move the blue guide so that it touches the label stock.



8. Push until the printer detects the stock, grabs it, and pulls it through the printer.

2D. Replacing the Digital Die-Cutting Knife holder

Install the included die-cutting knife shown here.

- 1. Open the Cover.
- 2. Pull out on the blue handle to loosen the knife collar.



- 3. Install the knife holder.
- 4. Push on the knife so it goes all the way down before pushing the collar in.
- 5. Push the collar to tighten the knife holder and allow it to cut.







Incorrect



Correct

2E. Replacing the Cutting Knife

When a knife is dull it will no longer cut through the label at maximum pressure. You will start to see ragged cuts or cuts that do not cut through the label material. You can attempt to increase the pressure but you'll probably need to replace the knife.

If a knife cuts through the liner and contacts the wear strip it may break the tip of the knife. This can be seen under 10x magnification using a loupe or magnifying glass. If the tip is broken the knife must be replaced.

If your knife needs replacement, follow this procedure:

- 1. Remove the knife holder from the carrier using the instructions from section 2D.
- 2. Rotate the cap of the knife holder counterclockwise.
- 3. Remove the knife from the holder. You can tap the holder on a hard surface to free the knife from the holder.
- 4. Locate a new knife. Remove the molded plastic cover from the knife. The plastic cap covers the cutting end of the knife. However, both sides are sharp! The cutting end has an angled carbide tip. The top-end comes to a point so it can be easily centered in the receiving divot on the knife holder cap.
- 5. Insert the cutting end into the knife holder.
- 6. Using the knife holder cover, center, the back end of the knife in the holder. You may need to screw down the cover and reverse it several times until the knife has been centered. Do not force the cap on the holder. The carbide tip will break. A very slight amount of force is necessary to secure the knife holder cap.

Carbide Tip

(Cutting End)



Knife Holder

2F. Replacing Ink Cartridges

You can replace cartridges at any time or wait for the Low Ink Warning to prompt you to replace cartridges. You will receive low ink warnings at 10% and 0%. Press the Load/Feed button to continue printing after you receive this warning.

To change a cartridge, follow this procedure:

- 1. Open the front cover. That cartridge will automatically move to the right side if it is not already there.
- 2. Press or pinch the tab on the front of the cartridge holder.



3. Remove the cartridge.



icolorprint.com

4. Locate a new cartridge and remove it from its packaging. Remove the foil outer package and the tape covering the nozzles.



5. Place the new cartridge into the empty carriage. Note: When installing the cartridge, tilt the cartridge at a slight backward angle of approximately 30 degrees.



6. Make sure the cartridge is pushed back far enough so the ridge on the cartridge is behind the spring-loaded pusher on the lid. <u>Push down on the cartridge</u>. Close the lid on the cartridge by lightly pressing down from the top until you hear a click.



2G. Adjusting the Gap Sensor Position (Pre-Die-Cut Labels Only)

If you are using label stock other than standard square / rectangular die-cut labels, such as circular diecut labels or through-hole stock, use the instructions below to adjust the position of the label stock gap sensor. The sensor can be adjusted using the slide bar on the back of the printer. Below the slide bar is a measurement that represents the distance between the edge of the label stock and the sensor. Measure the distance from the edge of the label stock to the correct position on the label stock. Set the sensor so the side of the slide bar lines up to this measurement. See the dashed line in the illustration below.



Circular Labels

sensor before loading nonstandard label stock.

If you are using Circular Labels you must adjust the stock sensor to correspond with the very top of the label where the circles are closest together. If the sensor is too far to the right or the left, the printer will still sense the label but the image may be offset downward because the printer will start printing in the wrong position. If you are using stock that has multiple labels across, make sure the sensor corresponds to a place on the stock that has a label and not a vertical gap.

The sensor can only be moved a maximum of 2 inches from the left side of the printable area. This means that the maximum diameter circular label that can be printed is 4 inches. For circular labels larger than 4 inches in diameter, you must have a black mark printed on the back of the label stock. This means that you must change the Stock Sensor Mode to Reflective. The printer will now look for the black mark representing the beginning of the next label instead of the die-cut.

For more information on changing the Stock Sensor Mode, see section 3C.

Section 3: UNINET IColor PrintHub

UNINET IColor PrintHub is used to interact with the printer for gathering ink levels, maintenance, alignment, cost calculation, and several other functions. UNINET IColor PrintHub automatically installs with your printer driver and can be accessed through the printer driver preferences or as a program on your Windows start menu.

1. Connect the printer via USB and turn on the power. The UNINET IColor PrintHub accesses most of the information it uses from the printer itself so the printer must be turned on and communicating for the program to be useful.

IColor 250	IColor 25	0 Label - P	Preparing Prin	t	A		Digital Die-Cut Media
	Queue Print	Lignment Label	Feed Printer Setting	2	•		\cup \mathbf{U}
	Cueued Jobs						
U	Cancel Name		Identifier				
	Cancer Iname		77		0		
		0 Untitled-1 - CUT	2.1		-(7		
		0 010/e0-1 - 001			V		60 % G
	1					Cancel All Jobs	
						Cancer Ail Jobs	
	Past Jobs						
	Quote Name	Prints Print Co	st ^a Prints per Cartridge ^a	Prints Remaining ³	Identifier		
	Lineisk	rd 0 \$0.000	0	0	77		
(Untitie	nd 1 \$0.279	275	183	64		High Ourge One.
	E Units	rd 1 \$0.212	363	363	62		
	E Untits	Hd 1 \$0.172	448	448	60		
	Lineida	rd 1 \$0.229	335	335	58		
					Restore Defaul	\$75.95 per Cartridge	
							and the owner water w
							100
							PR. PA
	Calcuations are					Print Counter: 1 🕥	

2. Go to Start / Programs / UNINET IColor Technology / UNINET IColor PrintHub.

- A. Adjust alignment, sensor mode, output mode, and advanced settings.
- B. If you have multiple UNINET printers connected, they will be listed here.
- C. Past jobs will show the last 5 jobs along with cost information. Click the document icon to view a cost report.
- D. Application Settings
- E. Print Queue shows the currently printing job.
- F. Frequent Activities
- G. Current Ink Levels (Ink is displayed in 10% increments. For example, 100% to 90% to 80%, etc.)
- H. Digital Die-Cutting Media Status and Remaining Amount (If installed)

3A. XY Cutting Settings- Cut Offsets, Knife Pressure, and Stretch Factor

Cut Offsets, Knife Pressure, and Stretch Factor settings can be found in UNINET IColor PrintHub on the XY Cutter Tab.



Cut Offsets If your cut does not line up with your printed image, you can adjust it using the **Horizontal Offset** and **Vertical Offset** settings. Press the Send Test Print to help you determine which direction to move the offsets or refer to the image below.



Knife Pressure affects how deep into the media the knife will cut. Ideally, you want to cut deep enough to cut through the label layer on the top but not so deep that you cut through the backing paper (liner). When you cut through the backing paper your label will not peel cleaning off the backing paper. You will also score the wear strip under the cutting knife which can cause the knife tip to break. You will also need to replace the wear strip more often if you cut too deep.

By default, the cutter is calibrated to work with High Gloss Paper Media. However, other media types will need more or less cut pressure to cut properly.

Each Roll of Media will have a recommended value to add or subtract from the default baseline values used for Knife Pressure and Knife Stretch Factor. These values are listed below and printed on a label attached to the inside of the core.





	Knife Pressure	Stretch Factor		
High Gloss Paper	0	0		
High Gloss BOPP	4	0		
Magnetic	22	32		

Knife Stretch Factor can be increased or decreased to compensate for different feed thicknesses and textures of media. Thickness and texture can affect the feed speed of the media usually causing it to feed more slowly than the baseline media (High Gloss Paper). This will cause the height/length of your cut to be shorter. If you find that your cut height/length is longer or shorter than the height specified in the IColor CustomCUT software, you may need to increase or decrease the stretch factor. Increasing this value will create a longer cut. Decreasing it will create a shorter cut.

Adjusting Knife Pressure over time.

Eventually, the knife blade will begin to wear and require more cut pressure to cut at the same depth as when it was brand new and sharper. Therefore, you may need to add cut pressure when cutting any media even the High Gloss Paper.

To determine if cut pressure needs to be increased or decreased, follow these steps.

- 1. Print and Cut one copy and then attempt to peel the label from the liner.
- 2. Check for tear. If the label tears when you remove it, you will need to increase the cut pressure. Increase pressure in small increments to avoid overcompensating and cutting through the liner.
- 3. Check the liner. Once you peel up the label, check the liner. If it has been cut through, decrease pressure.
- 4. Continue increasing or decreasing pressure until the label no longer tears when removed or the liner is not cut through.

NOTE ABOUT MAGNETIC MEDIA: The recommended starting knife pressure for the magnetic media is 22. This media is not meant to be cut all the way through because there is no liner. Instead, this knife pressure setting is meant to score the magnetic media so that it can be removed by hand after printing. In some cases, it may be necessary to tear the outer excess material from the intended shape.

If you do cut through this media, it can damage the wear strip, break the knife tip, or cause media jams.

3B. Using the Cost Estimator

The cost estimator is found under the queue section on the first tab of the UNINET IColor PrintHub. The last five job costs are stored in the list. Each job will show the cost per label based on the cost per cartridge entered below the list. Enter the actual cost of the cartridge you paid.

Prints remaining on the currently installed cartridge and total prints on the new cartridge are both displayed.

□ UniNet iColor® PrintHub™									
IColor 250 Label 🗸		Label - Idle nment Label Fe	Digital Die-Cut Media						
	Queued Jobs: Cancel Name Identifier								
	Past Jobs: Quote Name	Prints Print Cost ³	Prints per Cartridge ¹	Prints Remaining ¹	Identifier				60 %
-	Untitled Untitled	1 \$0.218	409 353 275	270 233 181	80 77 64				⊕
-	Untitled	1 \$0.212	363 448	239 295	62 60				Align Change Clean
to Settings	¹ Calcuations are es	timates.			Restore	Default	\$76.95 Print Coun	per Cartridge ter: 3	

To see a printable/savable report click on the document icon next to the job you want to see. A report will display the information. You can print or save the report from this screen. You can also change the currency using the drop-down, change the job name, or adjust the cost from this screen.
Untitled		
urency To Use LuS Dolar wridge Cost Save Print	UniNet IColor 250 Label Cost Report for: Untitled Cartridge Cost: \$76.95	
	Estimated Ink Cost per Print \$0.188	
	Per Print Details	
	Cost per Print \$0.188	
	Time per Print 29.4 seconds	
	Cartridge Percentage per Print 0.000 %	
	Job Details	
	Prints 1	
	Time Elapsed 0 hours 0 minutes 29 seconds	
	Prints per Full Cartridge 409	

3C. Set the Gap Sensor Mode (Pre-Die-Cut Labels Only)

The stock sensor mode refers to the method the printer will use to detect the print starting position for each label. To adjust the stock sensor mode, open the UNINET IColor PrintHub. In most cases, you will NOT need to change this setting. By default, it is set to sense standard Pre-die-cut labels. It is only necessary to change this setting if you are using clear labels or any label with a black sensing mark on the back. When you install Digital Die-Cutting Label Stock this setting will automatically be set for you.

- 1. Connect the printer via USB and turn on the power. The Stock Sensor Mode setting is stored in the printer's internal memory so you will not be able to access it unless the printer is turned on and properly communicating with the computer.
- 2. Go to Start / Programs / UNINET IColor Technology / UNINET IColor PrintHub.
- 3. Click on the Label Feed (3rd tab from left).
- 4. Select the Stock Sensor Mode by clicking on the graphic that most closely corresponds to the stock you intend to install.
- 5. Load the label stock after you have set the sensor mode.

[] UniNet iColor® PrintHub™			
IColor 250			
IColor 250 Label 🗸	IColor 250 Label - Idle		100 % Digital Die-Cut Media
	Queue Print Alignment Label Feed Printer Settings		\bigcirc
		All Changes Saved.	
	Sensor Mode		
	Sensor mode selection disabled for Digital Die-Cut Media		
			60 %
	Continuous Reflective DieCut		
	Present Mode		
	Cutter Enabled		
	Do not present	Present after no activity	Align Change Clean
	2.0 C Present Timer (seconds)		ringin change clean
🗘 Settings			Pro Pro

There are three sensor modes:

Die-Cut (Default). If you are using standard die-cut labels that look similar to the graphic, use this setting regardless of the size of the label. Also, use this setting for Through-hole label material where a hole is punched through each label or a notch is cut in the side.

Reflective. Use Reflective for label material where a black pre-printed line (black mark) on the back of the label stock indicates the break between labels. Black marks are required on clear label stock rolls or label where the label waste matrix (waste) is left on the liner. Black marks can also be used for irregularly shaped labels, circles larger than 4 inches, or on any stock where the print starting position cannot be sensed using the label itself.

Continuous. (Sensor off) If you have continuous stock with no die-cut, reflective mark, or holes, set the sensor type to Continuous. This will turn off the stock sensor. In this mode, there is no way to set the print starting position. The printer will simply start printing the first label and print each subsequent label immediately after that previous one. To produce a gap between prints simply add the desired amount of white space to the end of the label being printed. The printer will automatically switch to this setting when Digital Die-Cutting Label Stock is installed.

IMPORTANT NOTE: You must also set the Stock Sensor Position (Section 2G)

3D. Set the Present/Cut Mode

Use the Present/Cut Mode to adjust how the printer presents labels after they are printed or if/when they are cut after printing. To adjust the Present/Cut Mode, open the UNINET IColor PrintHub program.

- 1. Connect the printer via USB and turn on the power. The Output/Cut Mode Setting is stored on the printer's mainboard so you will not be able to access it unless the printer is turned on and properly communicating with the computer.
- 2. Go to Start / Programs / UNINET Technology / UNINET IColor PrintHub.
- 3. Click on the Label Feed Tab.
- 4. Click on the Output/Cut Mode button. There are different options available which change if the Cutter is enabled or disabled. If the Cutter is disabled, the label present options will be available. If the Cutter is enabled the present options are no longer available but cut options become available.

Cutter Options

🔚 UniNet iColor® PrintHub™				
IColor 250 IColor 250 Label	IColor 250 Label - Idle Queue Print Alignment Label Feed Printer Settings			Digital Die-Cut Media
	Sensor Mode Sensor mode selection disabled for Digital Die-Cut Media Continuous Reflective DieCut Present Mode Cutter Enabled		All Changes Saved.	60 %
	Cut after no activity Cut after every label	Cut after button press		Align Change Clean
Settings	2.0 Present Timer (seconds)			

Cut after the button press. This setting will cut after you press the Load/Feed button on the printer. This can be used after one label or an entire job. This feature is useful if you will not be present at the end of the print to catch the cut label.

Cut after label count. This option will cut after the number of labels specified in the toggle box that appears when this option is selected. This is useful if you have front/back labels or sets of labels.

Cut after no activity. This setting will cut at the end of a print job if the printer does not receive another print job within one second of the last print job in the queue. You can use this feature to cut at the end of a multi-copy job, multi-page job, or multiple individual jobs in the queue.

Cut every label. This setting will cut after every label.

Present Options

UNINET IColor Printhu	b					
IColor 250	-	IColo	r 250 Label -	Idle		
IColor 250 Label	~					
		Queue	Print Alignment	Label Feed	Printer Settings	
		Sensor	Mode:			
				H	0	
		Co	ntinuous R	eflective	DieCut	
		Present	Mode: er Enabled			
		Do n	ot present		Present after no activ	vity

Do not present. In this mode, the label stock does not move after the last label is printed. This means that part of the last label printed is still in the printer. This should be used only if you have a label rewinder attached.

Present after no activity. This setting will present (feed all printed labels past the front opening) at the end of a print job if the printer does not receive another print job within one second of the last print job in the queue. You can use this feature to present at the end of a multi-copy job, a multi-page job, or multiple individual jobs in the queue.

3E. Adjusting Print Alignment

If your previous experience with printing is limited to printing letters and cards to 8.5" x 11" paper you probably are not familiar with an essential part of label printing - Print Alignment. Standard printers feed a sheet and start printing based on the start of the sheet. They also prohibit printing to the edge of the sheet. This is to avoid any need for alignment.

The IColor 250 senses the beginning of the label with an optical sensor and is capable of printing to top, bottom, left, and right edge. Because of this, it is necessary to align the printer to work with specific types of label stock.

The IColor 250 comes factory calibrated to print exactly to the edge of UNINET label stock. However, due to variations in the left margins and other variables, it may be necessary to fine-tune these settings at the beginning of each roll. This is especially true for other non-UNINET brand label stock.

Adjust print alignment using the UNINET IColor PrintHub. Go to the Print Alignment Tab (second tab).



Click on Test Alignment to print the alignment shown to the right. Look at the print to determine how much white space is visible on the edges. The black lines should print right on the leading edge and left edge. In this example, the Top of Form needs approximately - 10.

- 1. Left Margin Offset. This value moves the printed label left or right. Add to the current value to move the printed label to the right. Subtract from the current value to move the printed label to the left.
- 2. **Top of Form (TOF).** This value moves the print start position up or down on the label. Add to the current value to move the printed label down or toward the printer. Subtract from the current value to move the printed label up or away from the printer.



The value is automatically saved as soon as you set it. You may have to make several adjustments to one or more of these values. After each adjustment, you can click the Test Alignment button to print a small test pattern on the label. This will help you find the proper alignment value.

3. **Tear off/Cut Position.** This value adjusts the position of the last label printed after it has been presented. This only applies if the output mode is set to "Present the label." Add to the current value to move the tear point closer to the printer. Subtract from the current value to move the tear point away from the printer. The value is automatically saved as soon as you set it.

3F. UNINET IColor PrintHub Settings

- 1. General application settings that apply to the software and all printers can be found by clicking the blue "Settings" button in the lower left. Printer specific settings can be found on the "Printer Settings" Tab. See the next section.
- 2. **Language.** Typically, the language is set to match the language setting in the operating system. However, you can override currency settings on the Language Tab.
- 3. **Printing Preferences.** You can choose to close UNINET IColor PrintHub after printing completes by checking the "Close this application after printing completes" box. UNINET IColor PrintHub automatically opens whenever you send a print job to the printer. If you do not want UNINET IColor PrintHub to open in front of other programs, you can check the "Launch minimized during print" option.
- 4. **Support.** Click the "Generate Support Report" button to generate a zip file on your desktop containing all recent log files. Send this to tech support so they can help solve any printing problems.

3G. UNINET IColor PrintHub Printer Settings

UniNet iColor® PrintHub™		
IColor 250		
IColor 250 Label 🗸	IColor 250 Label - Idle	100 % Digital Die-Cut Media
	Queue Print Alignment Label Feed Printer Settings	
	Information	
	Driver IColor 250 Label (1.0.1)	
	Firmware 1.41 7/29/2020 (4) 11.19	
	Serial Number 2200900210	
	Software Version 1.6.2.4	60 %
	Advanced Settings	
		Align Change Clean
		KONET 10
		PIRI-PIRI
Settings		1

Printer settings can be found in UNINET IColor Print Hub on the Printer Settings Tab for the IColor 250.

Information. This section displays all current drivers, software, and firmware versions.

Advanced Setting Button. Click the Advanced Settings button to view the following settings.

General		
USB Serial Number	1	Generate Set
Return user settings to their default values		Restore Factory Defaults
Cartridge		
Perform Wiper Maintenance if print quality is poor at t beginning of a print	he	Wiper Maintenance
Seconds between Maintenance Spits	3	All Changes Saved.
Pages between Maintenance Wipes	10	All Changes Saved.
Suppress Alignment		
Stock Feed		
Roll Feed Speed (0.1 in/sec)	60	All Changes Saved.
Feed Speed (0.1 in/sec)	60	All Changes Saved.
Print Speed (0.1 in/sec)	40 🗘	All Changes Saved.
Reverse Speed (0.1 in/sec)	60	All Changes Saved.
Vertical Print Adjust (FRHH)	-19	All Changes Saved.
Max Label Search Length (inches)	12	All Changes Saved.
Create loop before printing (Disable for long prints)		
Run a sensor calibration to improve stock loading accuracy. Stock must be removed from printer.		Calibrate Paper Sensor
(Y Cutter		
Knife Pressure	0	All Changes Saved.
Knife Stretch Factor	0	All Changes Saved.
Horizontal Offset (300 dpi)	0	All Changes Saved.
Vertical Offset (300 dpi)	0	All Changes Saved.

General Settings

3G1. Multiple Printer Support.

You can install multiple printers on the same computer and use them simultaneously. To do so you will need to change the USB serial number identifier of one of the two printers, two of three printers, three of four printers, etc. To change serial numbers:

- 1. Connect each new printer one at a time. The current USB Serial Number will be displayed.
- 2. Click Generate. It will find the next available USB Serial Number based on the currently connected printers. For the first one, it should set it to 2, and for the next printer 3 and so on.
- 3. Click Set. You will hear the printer reset and the settings window will turn gray. After it resets you will be able to see the settings window again. Keep the printer connected.
- 4. Now you can connect to the next printer. Windows will automatically install a new driver for that new printer and name it IColor 250 (Copy 1). You can rename it later by editing the printer properties in the Windows printer list.
- You will now see a second printer appear in the left column IColor 250 (Copy 1). Click on it to display information about this printer. If this is the last printer, you will connect you are done. If you wish to connect additional printers follow-through steps 2-4.

Restore Factory Defaults. This will set all Print alignment and other calibration settings back to factory defaults.

Cartridge Settings. Here you can adjust the frequency of certain maintenance operations. Increasing the value of "Seconds between Maintenance Spits" will decrease ink usage but could also cause poor quality printing.

Increasing of Pages between Maintenance Wipes will speed up printing but could also cause poor quality printing.

Check the Suppress Alignment message to prevent the window from appearing which prompts you to align the cartridge every time a new cartridge is installed. Skipping the alignment is faster but can result in poor print quality.

Stock Feed Settings. Adjust these settings only if directed to do so by Tech Support. Calibrate the paper sensor if you are receiving TOF errors. The calibration process will prompt you to remove all paper/stock from the printer before calibrating.

Section 4: Printing and Cutting with IColor CustomCUT Software on PC and Mac

IColor CustomCUT Software is everything you will need to layout your prints and cuts for your IColor 250. Every object that you place in your layout can be set to print only, cut only, or Print and Cut.

File Edit Object Path Layer Dage Effects Text View Cutter Window Help 🏭 🚄 à 2 н **(2)** ☆ X 0 New X . Сору Cut Undo Redo Trace Library 2 Handles: Advanced Intitled-1 🛞 🛟 New Projec STYLE **E**h k ^ R Style: Normal ۲Þ Т Weld ٥ Clipping: None o 3 Cut Line Type: Cut only Ø 0 **≜**A 6 ~ 🥖 Preset: < Default > old King's P N LAYERS ONDON. گ 🕙 \square DRY GIN . 💿 😤 🔻 🔁 PRM-old-kings-gin.svg æ ?) 💿 . | 🕝 Layer_2 Made with the p <u>.</u> 🚆 🕨 🜀 Layer_1 0 4 Library 5 Shapes 🛍 î 🖸 🖸 := ::: Q Oval Vertic - Favorites î Library My Designs v 5.55, 5 100%

4A. Overview IColor CustomCUT

- 1. **Layers.** Layers allow you to see and manipulate layers of imported SVG files or elements added within IColor CustomCUT. SVG files can be created in programs like Adobe Illustrator.
- 2. **Import.** Allows you to import flat files and Vector files like AI, EPS, and SVG which can be a graphic you would like to print, a cut file, or both in the same file.

icolorprint.com

- 3. **Trace** Allows you to create a cut file by tracing a JPG, BMP, or TIF, or other flat files that you have imported. This is a great option for creating complex cut files without needing another expensive and complex design program.
- 4. Advanced Design Tools. Advanced design tools such as Gradient, Eye Dropper, Eraser, Freehand drawing, and the Shape Node Tool allow you to create your desire design in IColor CustomCUT.
- 5. Document, Position & Size, Fill & Stroke, Style, Text. These tabs all manipulate existing objects on the page. The document controls the artboard or page size. Position & Size allows you to precisely move objects on the page. Fill & Stroke feature allows you to change the color of the lines. The Style allows you to change whether a particular object should be cut, printed, or both. The Text allows you the change font and size of text objects.



- a. Document. Use this tab to adjust the page size after it has already been setup. Sometimes you may need to increase the height of the page to accommodate a bleed or multiple rows.
- b. **Position & Size.** You will use this tab to move both the cut line and the image on the page. It is much easier than trying to drag and drop images manually.

FILL & STROKE	5	STYLE	S	
Fill: None V Opacity: 100 %		Style: Normal 🔨		
Stroke: Color V Opacity: 100 %		Weld Clipping: None	•	3
Width: 1.00		Cut Line Type: Cut only		S
Join: Fr Fr Fr Miter: 10.0	AA ?	Print only Cut only Print & Cut 	Â	A
End Cap: 🔲 间				2
Line Style: V Edit]			

- c. **Fill & Stroke.** Use this to change the line style of the cut. For the most part, you should leave these settings at their defaults. If you are having trouble seeing your cut line, you can change the color of it here.
- d. **Style**. Here you can designate whether any object should be Print, Cut, or both. By default, all images imported using the import icon will be set to Print. Also, all objects drawn using the rectangle or circle tool will be set to Cut. However, this tab will allow you to adjust this if necessary.
- e. **Text.** The text tab allows you to adjust the font, size, and other properties of text. Text can be added using the Text tool from the left side toolbar.

R

Ð

1.1.1

 \odot

- Library. The library contains some preset shapes that you can apply to your document as cut objects or print objects.
- 7. Page Layout. This area shows your actual image. You can move objects here by clicking and dragging. You can also see where the cut will be made with your print. In the example above the cut, the line is highlighted red and inset (over bled) slightly so there will unprinted area on the label.



4B. IColor CustomCUT Software Activation

You will need to activate the IColor CustomCUT Software and will be sent an activation code in your purchase confirmation.

To Activate, follow the activation prompt that appears when you open the software or go to the Help Menu – Activate.

IColor CustomCUT Demo Mod	le	
"IColor CustomCUT" will run ir with a valid Activation Code.) Demo Mode until the	software is activated
In Demo Mode:		
-Cutting is disabled		
	\checkmark	
	Activate	ОК



An activation window will appear. Enter the activation code with the dashes included. Click OK.

Activate IColor Cu	istomCUT		
Please enter your	Name and Act	ivation Code.	
Name:	John Smith		
Activation Code: 123456-123456-123456-123456-123456			
Activa	te Manually	Cancel	ОК

The software is now activated on this computer.

IMPORTANT NOTE: Activation requires internet access!

icolorprint.com

4C. Tutorial: How to Setup a Print and Cut using IColor CustomCUT - Vector File Cut

If you have a designer that can use an advanced program like Adobe Illustrator or Corel Draw, you can save your print file and cut the file together as a multi-layer vector file in AI, EPS, or SVG format. You can then import them into IColor CustomCUT and designate which layer will be the cut and which will be the print. This will allow you to create complex cuts in exactly the right shape and exactly the right position. This method is the best way to get the highest quality print and cut. While tracing the image using the steps in the previous section will allow you to create the same shapes, you can save time and create a smoother cut file using this method.

IMPORTANT NOTE: Before you start with IColor CustomCUT, your designer should create the print and cut lines together, and save them as two separate layers in the same file. You'll be able to see these layers when you import the file into IColor CustomCUT.



Print Layer

4C1. Choosing a Label Size (Page Layout)

After you activate your software you will be prompted to open or create a new project.

1. Choose New Project...



2. Set your page size. Since all die-cutting media is 4.25" wide the standard maximum width is automatically set to 4.25. In this example we have set the size to 4.25 x 6 to accommodate approximately a 4" x 6" label.

W: 4.25" x 2" to create a bleed H: 4.25" x 4" that you always c	New Project	
4.25" x 1" label size to be curve 4.25" x 2" to create a bleed 4.25" x 6" that you always curve 4.25" x 8" and get perfect curve	Name:	Untitled-1
W: 4.25" x 2" to create a bleed 4.25" x 3" to create a bleed H: 4.25" x 4" that you always c Orientation: 4.25" x 12" and get perfect co	Page Size:	Custom Size ∨
H: 4.25" x 4" 4.25" x 6" Orientation: 4.25" x 8" 4.25" x 12" Units:	w:	
Orientation: 4.25" x 6" that you always cu Orientation: 4.25" x 8" and get perfect cu	H.	
4.25" x 12" and get perfect cu		4.25" x 6"
Units: Custom Size		
	Units:	Custom Size
		Cancel OK

icolorprint.com

3. To set the page height or width to a custom size type the size in the W: and H: boxes or toggle the size up or down with the arrows.

New Project	
Name:	Untitled-1
Page Size:	Custom Size ∨
w:	4.25 in 🚖
н:	10.000 in 🚔
Orientation:	Vertical (Portrait) \sim
Units:	Inches ~
	Cancel OK

4C2. Import a Vector Image (PDF, AI, EPS, SVG)

The IColor CustomCUT Software allows you to import vector files for printing and cutting. You can import the following vector image formats: PDF, AI, EPS, SVG

To import an image for printing follow these steps.

1. Go to the File Menu or shortcut bar, choose Import.



icolorprint.com

2. Browse to the file you would like to use and choose Open.

Look in:	Sample Labe	ls v	 G 🔌 📂 🛄 - 		
Quick access Desktop Libraries This PC	Name Samples PRM-dark- PRM-dark- Repose_Kor Repose_Cor Repose_Ora	herd-coffee-dieline.svg mbucha.ai mbucha.svg ınge_band.ai	Date modified 10/11/2019 3:29 PM 9/19/2019 3:29 PM 9/19/2019 3:29 PM 9/19/2019 12:50 PM 9/19/2019 12:52 PM 9/19/2019 2:29 PM 9/19/2019 2:24 PM	Type File folder Adobe Illustra SVG Documer Adobe Illustra SVG Documer SVG Documer	Preview Show Outlines Image: Weight of the second secon
	<			>	
	File name: Files of type:	PRM-dark-herd-coffee.ai All Readable Files	~	Open Cancel	

3. The file will appear on your page layout. You can manually move it on your page or increase the size. However, a better option is to use the Position & Size window. Set the size to match the size of the page layout. In this case center the image to the page.



4C3. Working with Layers in an Imported Vector File

Once you have imported the vector file you view the layers in the layers window. The cut file must be separated from the design at the top level. It cannot be buried under other layers that will be printed. In this example, the cut line layer is setup in Illustrator as an Outline instead of a Fill.



Either will work but Outline is preferable.

Outline

4. To view the sublayers and find the cut line, click on the arrow to open up the group.



Note: Before printing we recommend clicking the print Preview Button described in section 4H.

- Once you find the cut line, select that layer, and click the style tab above.
 A. <u>Choose Cut Only</u>.
 B. <u>Set Style to Blackout</u>.
- 6. Now select the Print layer, click on the stye tab above, and choose Print Only.

STYLE		STYLE	5
Style: Blackout 🗸	Î	Style: Normal	
Weld Clipping: None Cut Line Type: Cut only Print only Print & Cut Preset: < De	 	□ Weld Clipping: None Cut Line Type: Print & Cut Print only Cut only Print & Cut Print & Cut Preset: < Default >	
	Ţ		,
LAYERS		LAYERS	F
Carello Layer Laye		Eaver Name	*=
 Cuyor Finic PRM-dark-herd-coffee Cupped> Cupped> Cupped> 		 PRM-dark-herd-cof Clipped> Clipped> Clipped> 	fee.ai
Layer to be Cut		Layer to be Printed	

7. To print go to the File menu and choose Print or click the Print Icon on the shortcut bar. The print dialog will appear. Make sure Print+Cut is selected. Click the Properties button to access the printer settings such as Print Quality, Saturation, and Color Matching. For a full explanation of printer driver settings see section 5D.

4D. Tutorial: How to Setup a Print and Cut using IColor CustomCUT - Contour Cut

This tutorial will walk you through the basic steps to print and cut a label using the trace image/contour cut feature found in IColor CustomCUT.

4D1. Choosing a Label Size (Page Layout)

After you activate your software you will be prompted to open or create a new project.

1. Choose New Project...



2. Set your page size. Since all die-cutting media is 4.25" wide the standard maximum width is automatically set to 4.25". In this example, we have set the size to 4.25" x 4.25" to accommodate approximately a 4" x 4" label.

New Project		
Name:	Untitled-2	
Page Size:	Custom Size V	_
W:	4.25 in	
H:	4.25 in	
Orientation:	Vertical (Portrait) \checkmark	
Units:	Inches \checkmark	
	Cancel OK	

TIP! Set your page larger than the label size to be cut. This will allow you to create a bleed around the label so that you always cut inside your print and get perfect cut every time.

icolorprint.com

3. To set the page height or width to custom size, type the size in the W: and H: boxes or toggle the size up or down with the arrows.

New Project	
Name:	Untitled-1
Page Size:	Custom Size ∨
w:	4.25 in 🚖
H:	10.000 in 🚔
Orientation:	Vertical (Portrait) 🗸 🗸 🗸
Units:	Inches ~
	Cancel OK

4D2. Import an Image.

IColor CustomCUT allows you to import flat files and vector files. You can import the following image formats: AI, EPS, PDF, SVG, JPG, BMP, PNG, TIF, GIF.

IMPORTANT NOTE: UNINET recommends imported images are at least 300 dpi. The software is optimized for this size. Larger DPI images can be manually resized. Smaller dpi images will not utilize the maximum quality of the printer and may appear pixelated. Images downloaded from websites are typically made to display only onscreen load quickly so they are typically only 72 dpi.

To import an image for printing follow these steps.

4. Go to the File Menu or shortcut bar, choose Import.



icolorprint.com

5. Browse to the file you would like to use and choose Open.

<u>_</u>	Name	^	Date modified	Туре	
	Stream Labels	with SVG die cut files	10/10/2019 4:39 PM	File folder	Preview Show Outlines
Quick access	🖬 610 cleaner.pr	ng	9/13/2019 9:21 AM	PNG File	
	📓 610 coffee.png	9	9/13/2019 9:20 AM	PNG File	
. <u> </u>	🖻 610 gin.png		9/13/2019 9:21 AM	PNG File	
Desktop	📓 KeenKine-Goa	tBrie-4a.png	6/6/2019 12:50 PM	PNG File	
-	📓 KeenKine-Goa	tBrie-4b2.png	6/6/2019 1:53 PM	PNG File	
-	📓 KidHead_Supe	erHero_1.png	10/22/2019 1:51 PM	PNG File	
Libraries	🖬 KidHead_Supe	erHero_2.png	10/22/2019 1:51 PM	PNG File	
	📓 KidHead_Supe	erHero_3.png	10/22/2019 1:51 PM	PNG File	SPLASHBASH
	📓 NaturalOrgani	ic-Oregano (1).png	6/5/2019 4:27 PM	PNG File	
This PC	🖻 NaturalOrgani	ic-Oregano (2).png	6/6/2019 1:53 PM	PNG File	
		rd-coffee-CS edits.png	9/19/2019 10:16 AM	PNG File	
1	PRM-FreshTas	te-Coffee-Tabs.png	9/19/2019 11:19 AM	PNG File	
Network	-	Tea-Label-CS edits cut line.png	9/19/2019 2:30 PM	PNG File	
	Trampoline_K	idsZone.png	11/11/2019 8:44 AM	PNG File	
		lashBash_1b.png	11/11/2019 8:44 AM	PNG File	
	WaterPark_Sp	lashBash_2.png	11/11/2019 8:43 AM	PNG File	¥
	<			>	
	File name:	WaterPark SplashBash 2.png	~	Open	

- 6. The file will appear on your page layout.
- 7. You can manually move it on your page or increase the size. However, a better option is to use the Position & Size window. Set the size to match the size of the page layout. In this case, set the width to 4" and check the Keep Proportions box.



8. Center the image horizontally and vertically to the page.



4D3. Trace Image and Create Cut Line

Tracing the images requires a flat-file such as BMP, GIF, JPG, or PNG.

- 9. Select the image object that you just imported. This is very important. You'll know it is selected
 - when the bounding box appears around the image. Now click on the Trace Icon.



10. There are many options

available in the Trace Image window. However, the most important option is Contrast. You should adjust the contrast until the preview shows a single green highlighted image in the shape you would like to cut.

Input Choose an image WaterPark_SplashBash_2.png (1800 x 1766) Image Settings Mode: Monochrome	Output Show Nodes Nodes: 55 Show Source Image: Reset Mask Output Output Reset Mask Edit Mode: None V
Mode: Monochrome V Use half of value of the	
Output Settings Smooth (0-100): 75 🔶 Detail (0-100): 98 🔄 Single Line Threshold: 0 🔄 Break Apart Outlines 🗹 Blackout Add Image Layer (Print+Cut)	V Update Preview The preview is currently showing what will be traced. Click the Update Preview button to see trace result.
Restore Settings Save as SVG	Prompt to continue tracing Cancel OK

11. Click Update Preview to show the cut lines and the number of points/nodes in your cut file (if you check Show Nodes). These nodes are the points on your image to which the knife will travel to cut the label. Don't worry if your cut line isn't exactly in the right position or size. We'll adjust that later. At this point, you are just looking for smooth lines that represent the correct shape.

Input Choose an image WaterPark_SplashBash_2.png (1800 x 1766)	Output Show Nodes Nodes: 55 Show Source Image:
Image Settings Mode: Monochrome Contrast (0-255): ● 244 ● Resample: x1.0 (None) High Pass Filter 1 ● Output Settings Smooth (0-100): Single Line Threshold: 0 ● Break Apart Outlines ♥ Blackout Add Image Layer (Print+Cut) ●	Edit Mode: None
Restore Settings Save as SVG	Prompt to continue tracing Cancel OK

12. Note the difference in the preview when you increase and decrease the contrast.

Input Choose an image WaterPark_SplashBash_2.png (1800 x 1766)	Output Show Nodes Nodes: 8 Show Source Image:
Image Settings	Edit Mode: None 🗸
Mode: Monochrome Vulse Alpha Channel (when available)	<u> </u>
Contrast (0-255):	
Resample: x 1.0 (None) Despeckle High Pass Filter 1 Output Settings Smooth (0-100): 75 Detail (0-100): 98	EPLASHBASH WALLERARR
Single Line Threshold: 0	<
☐ Break Apart Outlines ☑ Blackout ☐ Add Image Layer (Print+Cut)	Update Preview The preview is currently showing what will be traced. Click the Update Preview button to see trace result.
Restore Settings Save as SVG	Prompt to continue tracing Cancel OK

Contrast to High: If contrast is too high you will lose the shape detection and end up with a rectangle cut.

Input Choose an image WaterPark_SplashBash_2.png (1800 x 1766)	Output Show Nodes Nodes: 359 Show Source Image: Q Q Reset Mask
Image Settings Mode: Monochrome Use Alpha Channel (when available) Contrast (0-255): 153 🐑 Resample: x 1.0 (None) High Pass Filter 1 💭 Output Settings Smooth (0-100): 75 €	Edit Mode: None
Detail (0-100): 98 🚖 Single Line Threshold: 0 牵 Break Apart Outlines 🗹 Blackout Add Image Layer (Print+Cut)	Update Preview The preview is currently showing what will be traced. Click the Update Preview button to see trace result.
Restore Settings Save as SVG	Prompt to continue tracing Cancel OK

13. Click OK when you are happy with the shape of your cut line. The cut line will appear on top of your image as a red outline. You'll see a trace layer appear in the layer window.

4D4. Offset a Cut Path

14. Now you'll need to offset the cut line inside your image so that you'll have a bleed. With the cut line selected go to the Path menu and select Offset.

File Edit Object Pa	ath Layer Effects Text View Cutter Window Help
	Union Alt+U
🔰 🔰 🗖	Intersection 🔎 🏙 🖾 🔛 🔍 🖊
New Open Sa	Redo Import Trace Library Preview Print
	Front Minus Back
Handles: Advanced	Back Minus Front
Untitled-1 🛞	Simplify
	Split Path
₩	Reverse Path
ا <mark>ہ</mark>	Object to Path
Т	Close Path 2 3 4
	Join Paths
	Offset Path
	Stroke to Path
1 - 1	

15. On the Path Offset Window, check the Inset Offset box and adjust the amount of offset. For this image, we chose 0.040 inches. You'll see a preview of the new position of the cut line in black.



16. Click OK to change the Offset. The new cut line will appear.



Note: Before printing we recommend clicking the print Preview Button described in section 4F.

17. To print go to the File menu and choose Print or click the Print Icon on the shortcut bar. The print dialog will appear. Make sure Print+Cut is selected. Click the Properties button to access the printer settings such as Print Quality, Saturation, and Color Matching. For a full explanation of printer driver settings see section 5D.

4E. Setup Multiple Identical Cuts (Duplicate and Array)

If you intend to print and cut a smaller label such as a 2" circle, you may want to duplicate that image and cut a line across the page so that you don't waste material. No matter what your label size is, your page size for die-cutting is always 4.25". It makes sense to fill up that page with as many labels across as you can. Follow these steps to Duplicate images and cut across the page.

1. Create your page size. In this example, we chose 4.25" x 4.25". You can choose a custom size to fit your labels. In this case, we wanted to choose a height that was able to accommodate 2 rows and two columns of 2.125" x 2.125" cut to 2" x 2".

New Project	
Name:	Untitled-3
Page Size:	Custom Size 🗸
w:	4.25 in
H:	4.25 in
Orientation:	Vertical (Portrait) \sim
Units:	Inches \checkmark
	Cancel OK

2. Import your image using the import lcon.



3. Set the Size & Position. In this example, we are setting the size to 2.125" x 2.125". Center the image horizontally and vertically.



- 4. Create your cut line using the shape tool on the left side toolbar. Right-click on the rectangle icon and choose the circle tool.
- Draw the circle close to the size of the images. You don't have to be accurate on this step since we will be changing the size and position in the next step.
- 6. Set the size to correspond to the actual cut label size you would like. In this case, we set the size to 2" x 2" so that we have a standard 1/16" bleed around the label. Uncheck the Keep Proportions box. This will make sure that no labels have any white unprinted areas around the edges.



7. Center the cut line horizontally to the page.

File Edit Object Path Effects Text View Cutter Window Help Image: New Open Save Image: Cut Copy Paste Image: Cut Cut Copy Paste Image: Cut	
Untitled-1 × Untitled-3 × Untitled-3 × Interest of the second sec	POSITION & SIZE X: 1.125 in • Y: 1.125 in • Nudge: • H Align: • Image: • V Align: • Image: • V • Vi: • Image: • <t< td=""></t<>

8. Using the arrow tool select both image and the cut line by drawing a box around them.



9. Group them by going to the Object Menu – Group. This will ensure that the cut stays with the image and in the correct relative location, while we move and duplicate the image in the next steps.



10. Align the group image and cut the line to the upper left corner.

File Edit Object Path Effects Text View Cutter Window Help New Open Save Cut Copy Passe Undo Redo Import Library Preview Print
Handle: Advanced

- 11. Now go to the Object Menu and click Duplicate. Make sure the image and cut line are still selected; otherwise, the Duplicate item will not be available.
- 12. Set the number of rows and columns.
- 13. Set the gap between the rows and columns. In this case, we are setting the gaps to zero. We already created a bleed so the cuts will not intersect or be too close to each other with zero gaps between prints.
- 14. To print go to the File Menu and choose Print or click the Print Icon on the shortcut bar. The print dialog will appear. Make sure Print+Cut is selected. Click the Properties button to access the printer settings such as Print Quality, Saturation, and Color Matching. For a full explanation of printer driver settings see section 5D.





4F. Print Preview

Before you print you can click the Preview button to verify what objects will cut and what objects will print. Check either Show Cut Lines or Show Printable to see what will print or cut.



4G. Vector File Specifications for Designer

When importing files using the methods described in section 4D please make sure the imported file follows the specifications below:

- 1. Place the design on a top layer. Place the cut line on another top layer at the same level as the design. Do not bury the cutline inside the design.
- 2. The cutline should be a compound path set as an outline. Set the color to any color that stands out against the design.
- 3. Position the cut line exactly where you want it relative to the design. The cut line should be the size of the final label. The minimum over bleed should be 0.040".
- 4. The workspace should match the full bleed of the design to be printed.
- 5. Convert fonts to vector graphics by outlining them. (In Illustrator, select the text go to the Type Menu Choose to Create Outlines).
- 6. Save the design as a vector file in this order of preference. 1. SVG File 2. AI File 3. PDF File.



icolorprint.com

Section 5: Printing Only to Pre-Die-Cut Labels

If you don't need to cut custom shapes, the IColor 250 is an extremely capable Pre-Die-Cut label printer. While IColor CustomCUT can print only to the IColor 250, other dedicated printing programs offer some advantages.

5A. Using BarTender for Pre-Die-Cut Printing

UNINET recommends BarTender for printing only. A fully functional Free Edition can be downloaded from the BarTender website. <u>https://www.bartendersoftware.com/free-edition-download/</u>

When you open BarTender, you will be given the choice to select an existing label or create a new one using a wizard. Use the following instructions as a guide through the wizard setup process.

1. Choose "Start a new BarTender document..."


2. Select "Blank Template". Click "Next".

New Document Wizard	×
Starting Point Select the starting point for the new document.	
You can start with a blank template, or a pre-designed template from a library of several common standards.	
Starting Point:	
Blank template	
○ Select template from library	
Select	
	< Back Next > Finish Cancel

3. Select "IColor 250 Label ". Click "Next".

New Document Wizard		597001
Specify the printer to use with this document.		
nter:		
IColor 250 Label	^	Document Properties
		Printer Properties
	~	
	< Ba	ack Next > Finish Cance

4. Select "Specify Custom Settings". Click "Next".

New Document Wi	izard	×
Stock Selection		
A Stock specifies the si position of the items or Stock or specify your o	ize of the page, and the size, number, and n the page. You may select a predefined own custom settings.	
Specify Custom S	ettings	
O Use a Predefined	Stock	
Category:	~	
Stock Name:	<	
		< Back Next > Finish Cancel

5. Set the page size, width, and height to match labels installed in the printer. Click "Next". **IMPORTANT:** Measure the label stock if you are unsure about the size.

📘 New Docum	ient Wizard					×
Page Size Select a page	size and orientati	on.				
Page Size: Width:	User Defined Siz	e Height:	2.0	~ in	Pr	eview:
- Orientation		123				
						Page Size: 3 x 2 in Template Size: 1.25 x 0.2 in
					< Bac	k Next > Finish Cancel

6. Select your label shape. This is typically "Rounded Rectangle" for standard labels from UNINET. Click "Next".

New Document Wizard Printed Item Shape Specify the shape of your items.	
 Rectangle Rounded Rectangle Ellipse Circle Disc (CD or DVD) 	Preview:
	< Back Next > Finish Cancel

7. Set all of the margins to zero. (You can adjust the left margin and Top of Form in the Label Alignment Section). Click "Next".

📘 New Do	cument Wizard		×
Margins Specify t	he margins for the	page.	
			Preview:
Top:	0.0 in		
Bottom:	0.0 in		
Left:	0.0 in		
Right:	0.0 in		
			Page Size: 3 x 2 in Template Size: 1.5 x 0.4 in
			< Back Next > Finish Cancel

icolorprint.com

8. For a standard label set Rows and Columns to 1. Click "Next".

New Document Wizard	Х
Rows and Columns Specify the number of rows and columns of items on each page of stock.	
	Preview:
Rows: 1 Columns: 1	
	Page Size: 3 x 2 in Template Size: 3 x 2 in
<	K Back Next > Finish Cancel

9. Set Template Size to be the same as the label size. Click "Next".

New Docume	nt Wizard		×
Template Size Specify the size	e of your item.		
			Preview:
- Template Size			
Width:	3.0 in		
Height:	2.0 in	Set Manually	
			Page Size: 3 x 2 in Template Size: 3 x 2 in
			< Back Next > Finish Cancel

10. Check the "Picture" box to add a background photo or graphic to your label. Click "Next". If you click "Finish", the remaining default wizard options will be set and no picture will be added.

New Document Wizard	×
Template Background Select a picture or color for your background.	
 Background Features	Preview:
	Page Size: 3 x 2 in Template Size: 3 x 2 in
	< Back Next > Finish Cancel

11. Select "Embedded Picture". Click the "File" Button to browse to the location of your photo/graphic file. Set the Size Method to "Stretch". Note the preview to the right. Click "Next" if you are satisfied with the layout of the photo or graphic. Otherwise, you may try one of the other Size Methods in the drop-down menu.

	nt Wizard ground Picture e for your template background.	
Source:	Embedded Picture Get Picture From File Scanner or Camera	Preview:
Size Method: Rotation: - Options Preprinted Print When: Overhang Tel Image Pri	Always	Moisturizing and Refreshing
Apply Ima	ge Processing Permanently	Page Size: 3 x 2 in Template Size: 3 x 2 in
		< Back Next > Finish Cancel

icolorprint.com

12. Review the label setup summary. If it is correct, click "Finish". Your blank label or label with a background will be displayed.

inished!	
When you press Finish, a new BarTender document will be created using the settings that you specified. Review: Starting Document: Blank Printer: IColor 250 Label Page Size: 3 x 2 in	Preview: Moisturing and Refreshing
Template Size: 3 x 2 in Background: -Embedded Picture: Lipbalm_3x2. JPG	C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C
	Page Size: 3 x 2 in Template Size: 3 x 2 in

You can edit any of these initial settings by going to the File Menu and selecting "Page Setup". Basic and advanced settings are available on the various tabs.

Page Setup							×
Stock Page	Layout	Shape	Media Handling	Printing Order	Templates	Background	
-Layout					- Preview		
Rows:	1	▲ ▼	Columns:	1			
- Margins					-		
Top:	0.0	in	Left:	0.0 in			
Bottom:	0.0	in	Right:	0.0 in			
Note: See t	ne Page ta	b to enab	ole design in the mar	gin area.)	
- Template Size					- 11		
Width:	3.0	in	Set Mar	nually			
Height:	2.0	in		,			
						Page Size: 3" x 2"	
						Template Size: 3" x 2"	
Wizard						OK Cancel Help)

5B. Add Text, Barcodes, and Graphics to a Label in BarTender

Once you have created your label size, you will be able to add text, a barcode, and/or graphics. This can be done using one of the buttons on the button bar at the top of the screen.



Tip: Double-click any object to open settings for that object.

Tip: Go to the Help menu to access the BarTender Manual and Tutorials.

5C. Printing From Other Programs

Since this printer uses a standard Windows printer driver you can print from any application you would like. There are just a few things to remember that will make it much easier.

 Set the Page/Label Size in the Driver. BarTender automatically prompts you for the size of the label that you are using. When printing from any other program you must do this manually. Before you print, simply set the custom page size just as you would set print quality in the document properties.



- 2. Check the image or document size. The image size or document size set in Illustrator should match the Page/Label Size set in the driver. If you have set your page size to 4" x 4" but your image is 5" x 3" the printer driver will automatically shrink your image to fit inside the 4" x 4" label. The result is that the actual printed label is 4" x 2.4". Avoid this by setting your document size or image size to match the label size.
- 3. Choose the right printing program. Many different applications are capable of printing to the IColor 250. However, there are only a few that are ideal printing applications. For example, Adobe Illustrator is an excellent design program but is not always the best printing program. It can be difficult to find the printing preferences or to know the exact size of the artboard. It is best to save as a PDF file and print from Adobe Reader or export as a 300 dpi JPG and print from BarTender.

icolorprint.com

5D. Creating a Full Bleed Print

To create a label that fills the space with no white margins, adjust these settings in the status monitor and printing application (BarTender). This is only necessary if you are printing to Pre-Die-Cut Label stock. If you are printing and cutting using die-cutting media, you can adjust the position of the cut line to accomplish this.

Page Size. Increase the page size width by .03 inches (1mm). Increase the height by .03 inches (1mm). If you are using BarTender, simply change the size under the File Menu - Page Setup. If you are using other graphics programs you will need to change the page size in the application and the printer driver preferences.



Left Margin Offset. You must decrease the left margin offset to center the over bleed on the label. If you over bleed by .03" you will need to decrease the Left Margin Offset by 0.4mm. This will center the page size increase so there is a .03 inch over bleed on both left and right sides. Some additional adjustments may be necessary if the label was not perfectly aligned, to begin with. See Section 4D.

TOF. Increase the Top of the Form by 0.4mm. This will cause the printer to start printing before the label and ensure a fully printed label. Some additional adjustments may be necessary if the label was not perfectly aligned, to begin with. See Section 4D.

UNINET IColor Printhub		— C
IColor 250		
IColor 250 Label 🗸	IColor 250 Label -Idle	
	Queue Print Alignment Label Feed Printer Settings	
	All Changes Saved.	50%
	Printer	50%
		50%
	Left Margin (mm)	Align Change Clean
	0 → +↑ Top Of Form (mm) →	Angn chungo cicun
	Tear Off Position	
Online Only		
🛱 Settings	Test Alignment	

Note: It is best to over bleed as little as possible to avoid excess ink on the label backing. Also, over bleeding too much will cause the printer to skip labels. This is because the printer stops printing too late to sense the next label.

5E. Printer Driver Settings

Once the printer driver has been successfully installed, you will need to set up the driver with the appropriate print options. Refer to the following steps to change or verify your default printer driver preferences. These settings will apply to all new designs created in other programs after the preferences were changed. Existing labels saved in BarTender will not be affected since the preferences are saved with the label. To change these preferences, you will have to change printer preferences through BarTender. (File Menu - Printer Settings)

Click the Start button, search for "Printers". Select Printers and Scanners. Select the IColor 250.

Choose Manage. Select Printing Preferences.



B Printers & scanners

🖶 IColor 250 Label Printing Preferences	×
Options	
🚌 IColor 250 Label Settings	
Paper Size: 4x3 in. Custom Page Size	
Orientation: <u>Portrait</u>	
Print Quality: <u>Quality 2</u>	
Color Matching: <u>Vivid Photos</u>	
Ink Saturation: <u>85</u>	
Enable Bi-di Printing: <u>Yes</u>	
Launch PrintHub	
Details	

icolorprint.com

Note on PC Settings:

Most applications allow you to change these same printer driver options from their "Print" and/or "Printer Setup" screens. Some applications such as BarTender save your settings with the label, others use settings only for the current print job just sent to the printer.

Paper Size

If you are using BarTender, this setting is adjusted during the label setup wizard. If you are using a program other than BarTender you will need to set this to the dimensions of your label. Keep in mind that the dimensions are always relative to the width and height of the actual label in the printer. The orientation of an image on the label should not change this setting. See Section 2A for minimum and maximum label sizes.

Orientation

There are two settings for orientation, Portrait, and Landscape. If your text and graphics print left to right or as shown on the screen, select portrait. If you wish your printing output to rotate 90 degrees from what you see on the screen so it is printing horizontally, select landscape as your orientation. Remember, this does not change the width and height of Paper Size. It is only a tool for viewing a label upright on the screen that will be printed sideways on the printer.

Print Quality

There are 4 levels of print quality in the driver. The lower the quality, the faster the print. Quality 1 provides the fastest print available while Quality 4 provides the best quality. It is recommended that you experiment with the different levels when designing your label to find a good balance between print quality and print speed. Quality 2 is the default.

Color Matching

There are several options available depending on which cartridge is installed (Pigment or Dye). The options will update automatically depending on which cartridge is installed.

Vivid Graphics mode is best used for graphical images where accurate color reproduction is not as essential. Images printed in this mode will look more vibrant because more ink is being used to produce them. However, printing images of people may produce skin tones that have a reddish tint.

Vivid Photo mode is best used for photographic images where accurate color reproduction is very essential. Images printed in this mode will look lighter than those printed in Vivid Graphics mode. Skin tones especially will look more natural in this mode.

ICC Gloss Paper, ICC Gloss Polyester, and ICC Matte Bopp are all ICC calibrated color matching options. Select the setting that corresponds to your installed UNINET media of the same type to produce ICC color-matched prints. Note: ICC monitor calibration and additional setup is required for this option to work.

NONE- will use no color matching.

Ink Saturation

This option controls the amount of ink used when printing an image. The default setting is 100%, which will provide the most accurate color matching. If the ink is not drying fast enough or "bleeding", you can decrease the Ink Saturation to lessen the amount of ink that is applied to the label.

Rotate 180 Degrees

Set this setting to Yes to print with the labels right side up as they exit the printer.

Enable Bi-di

Set to "Yes" for the fastest print speed. Requires an alignment print after every cartridge change. Set to "No" for better quality print (in some cases).

Launch UNINET IColor PrintHub

This setting will open the UNINET IColor PrintHub application.

Details

Select this setting to see current firmware and driver version information and other printer settings.

Section 6: Printing from a Mac

6A. Print Utility Setting (IColor 250 Config Utility)

The IColor 250 Config Utility is used to interact with the printer for gathering ink levels, maintenance, alignment, and several other functions.

Finding IColor 250 Config Utility

The IColor 250 Config Utility automatically installs with your printer driver and can be accessed through the Printer & Scanners in Mac under Apple Icon – System Preferences.

1. Connect the printer via USB and turn on the power. The IColor 250 Config Utility accesses most of the information it uses from the printer itself so the printer must be turned on and communicating for the program to open.



 Go to the Apple Icon – System Preferences - Printers and Scanners, select the IColor 250 label click on, Options & Supplies, and Open Printer Utility. Or you may simply print to the printer and the Utility will open.

Oper	n Printer Utilit	у

- 3. The IColor 250 Config Utility has 4 tabs that are arranged on the top of the window. Each tab opens a screen that has various similar functions.
 - Status Tab (First Tab). Displays ink levels, print counter, and any error messages.
 - **Cartridge Tab** (Second Tab). Use for aligning the cartridge, cleaning the cartridge, and changing the cartridge.
 - Alignment Tab (Third Tab). Adjusts vertical and horizontal print alignment. Changes the Stock Sensor Mode, toggles the Output/Cut Mode and XY Cutter Alignment Settings.
 - Settings Tab (Fourth Tab). Displays printer information including firmware version, driver version, and software version. Check for updates and set other advanced settings.



6B. Adjusting Print Alignment / Label Offsets (Pre-Die-Cut Only)

If your previous experience with printing is limited to printing letters and cards to 8.5 inches x 11 inches paper you probably are not familiar with an essential part of label printing – Print Alignment. Standard printers feed a sheet and start printing based on the start of the sheet. They also prohibit printing to the edge of the sheet. This is to avoid any need for alignment.

The IColor 250 senses the beginning of the label with an optical edge. Because of this, it is necessary to align the printer to work with specific types of label stock.

The IColor 250 comes from the factory calibrated to print exactly to the edge of UNINET IColor label stock. However, due to variability, it may be necessary to fine-tune these settings at the beginning of each roll. This is especially true for other non- UNINET IColor brand label stock.

IMPORTANT NOTE:

Before adjusting alignment settings first print one label at the quality level you intend for the entire print job. This will ensure the label stock is moving at the same speed and the stock sensor will sense the gap in the same way.



Adjust print alignment using the IColor 250 Config Utility. Click on the Alignment Tab (Third Tab).

• •		IColor 250 Con	flg		
	Ready				
	Label Offsets	Sensor Mode	Output/Cut	XY C	utter
llb	Printer	Tear off / Cut Position	Top of Form (.1 mm Units)	-4	
		Left Margin Offset	Cutter Offset (.1 mm Units)	0	
•		Top of Form (TOF)	Left Margin Offset (.1 mm Units)	15	~
-	Restore Fact	ory Defaults	Set		Test

Three items can be adjusted here:

- Tear off Position. This value adjusts the position of the last label printed after it has been presented for tear-off. This only applies if the output mode is set to "Present." Add to the current value to move the tear point closer to the printer. Subtract from the current value to move the tear point away from the printer. After adjusting the value click the Set Offsets button to send the value to the printer.
- Left Margin Offset. This value moves the printed label left or right. Add to the current value to move the printed label to the right. Subtract from the current value to move the printed label to the left. After adjusting the value, click the Set Offsets button to send the value to the printer.
- **Top of Form (TOF).** This value moves the print start position up or down on the label. Add to the current value to move the printed label down or toward the printer. Subtract from the current value to move the printed label up or away from the printer. After adjusting the value click the Set Offsets button to send the value to the printer.

You may have to make several adjustments to one or more of these values. After each adjustment, you can click the Test Offsets button to print a small test pattern on the label. This will help you find the proper alignment value.

6C. Set the Stock Sensor Mode (Pre-Die-Cut Only)

The stock sensor mode refers to the method the printer will use to detect the print starting position for each label. To access the Stock Sensor Mode, click on the Alignment button, then select Stock Sensor Mode. In most cases, you will not need to change this setting.



IMPORTANT NOTE: Set the Stock Sensor Mode **BEFORE** loading the label stock. You must also set the Stock Sensor Position (section 2D) so that the sensor is sensing the correct point on the label stock.

- **Die Cut (Default).** If you are using standard die-cut labels that look similar to the graphic use this setting regardless of the size of the label. Also, use this setting for through-hole label material where a hole is punched through each label or a notch is cut on the side.
- **Reflective.** Use Reflective for label material where a black preprinted line (black mark) on the back of the label stock indicates the break between labels. Black marks are required on clear label stock rolls or labels where the label waste matrix (waste) is left on the liner. Black marks can also be used for irregular shaped labels, circles larger than 4.6 inches, or on any stock where the print starting position cannot be sensed using the label itself.
- **Continuous.** (Sensor off) If you have continuous stock with no die-cut, reflective mark, or holes, set the Sensor Type to Continuous. This will turn off the stock sensor. In this mode, there is no way to set the print starting position. The printer will simply start printing the first label and print each subsequent label immediately after the previous. To produce a gap between prints simply add the desired amount of white space to the end of the label being printed.

6D. Set the Output Mode

Use the Present/Cut Mode to adjust how the printer presents labels after they are printed or if/when they are cut after printing. There are different options available which change if the Cutter is enabled or disabled. If the Cutter is disabled, the label present options will be available. If the Cutter is enabled the present options are no longer available but cut options become available.

- Cut Options (Check Cutter Enabled):
- **Cut after no activity.** This setting will cut at the end of a print job if the printer does not receive another print job within one second of the last print job in the queue. You can use this feature to cut at the end of a multi-copy job, multi-page job, or multiple individual jobs in the queue.
- **Cut after button press.** This setting will cut after you press the Load/Feed button on the printer. This can be used after one label or an entire job. This feature is useful if you will not be present at the end of the print to catch the cut label.
- Cut every label. This setting will cut after every label.
- **Cut after label count.** This option will cut after the number of labels specified in the toggle box that appears when this option is selected. This is useful if you have front/back labels or sets of labels.



Present Options (Uncheck Cutter Enabled)

- **Do not present**. In this mode, the label stock does not move after the last label is printed. This means that part of the last label printed is still in the printer. This should be used only if you have a label rewinder attached.
- **Present after no activity.** This setting will present (feed all printed labels past the tear-off point) at the end of a print job if the printer does not receive another print job within one second of the last print job in the queue. You can use this feature to present at the end of a multi-copy job, a multi-page job, or multiple individual jobs in the queue.

•••	IColor 250 Config
ш	Ready
lib	Label Offsets Sensor Mode Output/Cut Mode Cutter Enabled Do not present
	Present after no activity
Ф	

6E. XY Cutter Offsets (Digital Die-Cut Stock Only)

Cut Offsets, Knife Pressure, and Stretch Factor settings can be found in UNINET IColor Print Hub on the XY Cutter Tab.

• • •	IColor 250 Config					
	Ready					
	Label Offsets Sens	sor Mode	Output/Cut	XY Cutter		
	Knife Pressure	0				
	Knife Stretch Factor	0				
	Horizontal Offset (300dpi)	6				
	Vertical Offset (300dpi)	-5				
-		Set				
•						

Cut Offsets If your cut does not line up with your printed image, you can adjust it using the **Horizontal Offset** and **Vertical Offset** settings.

Press the Send Test Print to help you determine which direction to move the offsets or refer to the image below.



Knife Pressure affects how deep into the media the knife will cut. Ideally you want to cut deep enough to cut through the label layer on the top but not so deep that you cut through the backing paper (liner).

When you cut through the backing paper your label will not peel cleaning off the backing paper. You will also score the wear strip under the cutting knife which can cause the knife tip to break. You will also need to replace the wear strip more often if you cut too deep.

By default, the cutter is calibrated to work with High Gloss Paper Media. However, other media types will need more or less cut pressure to cut properly.

Each Roll of Media will have a recommended value to add or subtract from the default baseline values used for Knife Pressure and Knife Stretch Factor. These values are listed below and printed on a label attached to the inside of the core.

	Knife Pressure	Stretch Factor
High Gloss Paper	0	0
High Gloss BOPP	4	0
Magnetic	22	32

Knife Stretch Factor can be increased or decreased to compensate for different feed thicknesses and textures of media. Thickness and texture can affect the feed speed of the media usually causing it to feed more slowly than the baseline media (High Gloss Paper). This will cause the height/length of your cut to be shorter.

If you find that your cut height/length is longer or shorter than the height specified in the IColor CustomCUT software, you may need to increase or decrease the stretch factor. Increasing this value will create a longer cut. Decreasing it will create a shorter cut.

Adjusting Knife Pressure over time.

Eventually, the knife blade will begin to wear and require more cut pressure to cut at the same depth as when it was brand new and sharper. Therefore, you may need to add cut pressure when cutting any media even the High Gloss Paper.

To determine if cut pressure needs to be increased or decreased, follow these steps.

- 1. Print and Cut 1 copy and then attempt to peel the label from the liner.
- 2. Check for tear. If the label tears when you remove it, you will need to increase the cut pressure. Increase pressure in small increments to avoid overcompensating and cutting through the liner.
- 3. Check the liner. Once you peel up the label, check the liner. If it has been cut through, decrease pressure.
- 4. Continue increasing or decreasing pressure until the label no longer tears when removed or the liner is not cut through.

NOTE ABOUT MAGNETIC MEDIA. The recommended starting knife pressure for the magnetic media is 22. This media is not meant to be cut all the way through because there is no liner. Instead, this knife pressure setting is meant to score the magnetic media so that it can be removed by hand after printing. In some cases, it may be necessary to tear the outer excess material from the intended shape.

If you do cut through this media, it can damage the wear strip, break the knife tip, or cause media jams.

6F. Printing from Swift Publisher (Pre- Die-Cut Stock Only)

Swift Publisher is an inexpensive software that can be used to design/layout and print your labels if you are using an IColor 250 label printer attached to a Mac. Below is a tutorial on how to set up a label using Swift Publisher by Belight.

Download a Free Trial Here: https://www.swiftpublisher.com/ **NOTE:** This section only applies to Pre-Die-Cut Stock. For an explanation of stock types, please see section 2A.

When you open the software for the first time you will be asked to choose a Template.

Select Desktop Publishing – Blank. (Do not choose from the "Labels" category!) Choose either blank landscape or portrait. Click Choose.



1. It automatically defaults to 8.5 x 11. We will need to adjust the page size and the margins.



2. Type in the size at the top.

• •	•						Untitled	— Edited ~						
			k	Τ~	- \	~	QQ		9	(±	~ 📩	~		>>
	View			Editing	Tools		Zoom	Previe	w Mode	Ins	ert Sh	are	Print	
ଚ୍ଚ	*~	6	ඩ		78%~	< 1/	1 >		Content Page	es \$	D	3	A	T
Back	kground	ds	0	+							Page Size			
			1								+ 4.0	od in 0	I	3.000 in C
-	1	1	-	\$	1						Other			
	• •	12									Inches (in	n)		0
				in -	10	- I ₁	12	3	14	E	Orientatio	n		
-	Sec. 1	(Commission	-	-										
		e lies		2								,]		
and the second	Action	S.C. Maria	-	- 2										

IMPORTANT NOTE: The page size is not the same setting as the label size. In many cases, you will choose the same size for both. However, if you change the orientation of the label so you can see text/graphics upright on screen but the actual print will be rotated, you may need to choose the opposite setting for the label size.

For example: Page Size = 3×4 . Label Size = 4×3 . Do not change the orientation as it will change the page size. Orientation is set automatically depending on the page size.

3. Next, set all margins to zero. This will allow you to create designs that completely fill the label.

D F & T
Page Size ⊣ 4.000 in C ± 3.000 in C
Other 🔽
Inches (in)
Orientation
Simulate paper color
Document Margins
0.000 in 0
0.000 in 0 100 0.000 in 0 Left 0.000 in Right Bottom

4. Add Text, Barcodes, shapes, and images to your design.



5. For this example, we will add an image that we created. Click the Insert icon and choose Image from file....



NOTE: You can also add images from the Backgrounds menu included with Swift Publisher. Simply drag them to your template



6. Once your image is imported into your template you will need to adjust the size to fill the entire template (if that is your intention). Adjust the size by clicking the ruler icon in the Inspector with the image selected. Check the "Fit aspect ratio" box and then type in your size.



Image Selected

7. Now center the image by clicking both the horizontal and vertical centering buttons.



8. You are now ready to print. Click the Print icon to open the print



Dialog Box

9. The default label size is 8.5 inches x 11 inches. You can see this is not correct by looking at the preview. Always adjust the paper size to match the label stock size installed in the printer.

	Printer: IColor 250 Label © Presets: Default Settings © Copies: 1 Pages: • All
CALARKS MILLER TRADE	Paper Size: Other 0 11.00 by 8.50 inches Swift Publisher 5
	Quantity: 1 Scale to fit to paper size
1 of 1	Arrangement: Format as booklet • Vertical
	Mail Merge: Print List
? PDF V Hide Details	Cancel

10. In this case, we can choose a preset size (4 inches x 3 inches) to match the label size installed in the printer.

T Z Z Editing Tools Zoom	Preview Mode	2x2 3x2 3x2.5	Print Text Styles	
	Printer	3x4		
	Presets	4 x 6 4x2		
	Copies	4x3 4x4		
March 12 of State States	Pages	5x4	1	
Jananer		5x5	1	
MARKS	Paper Size	✓ Other	11.00 by 8.50 inches	Choose
Cities and Discussion Revenues		Manage Custom Sizes		Managed
		Quantity: 1		Custom
		Scale to fit to		Sizesif your
	_	Format as bo		label size is not
		Format as bo	JUNIEL	
				listed.

11. You can now see the preview is correct, the paper size is set so you are ready to print.

	Printer: IColor 250 Label Presets: Default Settings Copies: Pages: All From: 1 to: 1
MARKS	Paper Size: Other 0 11.00 by 8.50 inches
D III Same Street Street	Swift Publisher 5
	Quantity: 1
	Scale to fit to paper size
	Format as booklet
(<< < 1 of 1 >>>>	Arrangement: Horizontal
	Mail Merge: Print List
? PDF 💙 Hide Details	Cancel

6G. Creating a Custom Size - Mac

In many programs such as Adobe Illustrator, Photoshop, or Acrobat Reader you will need to choose your label/page size before you print. If the label size you need to use is not already on the list of available page sizes you will need to create a new custom size on the print screen of the program you are using to print.

1. Click the Paper Size drop-down menu. Choose Managed Custom Sizes.

T - T - X -	QQ	•	2x1 2x2	A ·
Editing Tools	Zoom	Preview Mode Printer Presets Copies Pages	3x2 3x2.5 3x4 4 x 6 4x2 4x3 4x4 5x4 5x5	Print Text Styles
ALARKS MICROTRES	Paper Size 🗸	Manage Custom Sizes Quantity: 1 Scale to f	fit to paper size	

- 2. Click the + sign to create a new size.
- 3. Enter the actual width and height of your label stock.
- 4. Set all margins to zero.
- 5. Rename the size the same as the width and height.



6. Your custom size will now appear at the bottom of the preset size list in this application and any other application on this Mac.

NOTE: If you need to over bleed your image to achieve complete coverage of your label, you would use this process to create a custom size that is .03 inches (or less) larger than your actual label stock. For Example, 4.03 inches x 3.03 inches for a 4 inches x 3 inches label.

6H. Creating a Full Bleed Print – Mac (Pre-Die-Cut Stock Only)

If you are having trouble making the image cover the entire label, first make sure the image is printing at least as big as the label size you have selected. Increase the selected page size by .03 inches on the width and .03 inches on the height to create an over bleed.

NOTE: Make sure under scaling options to select 'Fit to Page' in the print dialogue box if printing from Illustrator.

Left Margin Offset. You must decrease the Left Margin Offset to center the over bleed on the label. If you over bleed by .03 inches, you will need to decrease the Left Margin Offset by 4. This will center the page size increase so there is an over bleed on both the left and right sides.

TOF. Increase the Top of Form by 4. This will cause the printer to start printing before the label and ensure a fully printed label.



NOTE: This section only applies to Pre-Die-Cut Stock. For an explanation of stock types, please see section 2A.

NOTE: It is best to over bleed as little as possible to avoid excess ink on the label backing. Also, over bleeding too much will cause the printer to skip labels. This is because the printer stops printing too late to sense the next label.

6I. Printer Driver Settings

Printer driver settings are accessible on the print window of any application right before you click print.

Printing from Swift Publisher

Click on the Swift Publisher 5 dropdown menu and choose Printer Features.



Printing from Preview

Click on the Preview dropdown menu and choose Printer Features.

	Printer: IColor 250 Label	
······································	Presets: Default Settin	gs 📀
AAAAAA	Copies: 1	
A STATE OF S	Pages: 🔾 All	
MARK'S	From: 1	to: 1
MICRO BREW	Paper Size: 4.03 x 3.03	4.03 by 3.03 inches
	Orientation:	
FYTYTYT	Preview	
12 oz. All Natural Honey Brew	🗸 Auto Rotate	Show Notes
	Scale:	101%
((())) 1 of 1 ())	Scale:	O Print Entire Image
		Fill Entire Paper
	Copies per page:	1
PDF V Hide Details		Cancel Print
PDF 🔽 Hide Details	Printer: ICol	
PDF 🔽 Hide Details		or 250 Label
PDF V Hide Details	Presets: Defa	or 250 Label
PDF V Hide Details	Presets: Defa Copies: 1	or 250 Label 📀 ault Settings 📀
PDF V Hide Details	Presets: Defa Copies: 1 Pages: • All	or 250 Label 🗘
PDF V Hide Details	Presets: Defa Copies: 1 Pages: • All Frc	or 250 Label C ault Settings C om: 1 to: 1
PDF Hide Details	Presets: Defa Copies: 1 Pages: • All Frc	or 250 Label 🗘
MARK'S	Presets: Defa Copies: 1 Pages: • All Frc	or 250 Label C ault Settings C om: 1 to: 1
MARK'S	Presets: Defa Copies: 1 Pages: • All Paper Size: 4.03 Orientation:	or 250 Label © ault Settings © om: 1 to: 1 3 x 3.03 © 4.03 by 3.03
MARK'S	Presets: Defa Copies: 1 Pages: • All • Fro Paper Size: 4.03 Orientation: •	or 250 Label
MARK'S MICRO BREW	Presets: Defa Copies: 1 Pages: • All • Fro Paper Size: 4.03 Orientation: 1 Print Print Quality: Qui	or 250 Label © ault Settings © om: 1 to: 1 3 x 3.03 © 4.03 by 3.03 ter Features © ality2 ©
MARK'S MICRO BREW J2 oz. All Natural Honey Brew	Presets: Defa Copies: 1 Pages: • All Paper Size: 4.03 Orientation: 1 Print Print Quality: Qua Color Matching: 1	or 250 Label
MARK'S MICRO BREW	Presets: Defa Copies: 1 Pages: • All • Fro Paper Size: 4.03 Orientation: 1 Print Print Quality: Qui	or 250 Label

Printing from Adobe Reader

First, click on Printer... to access settings. Click on the Layout dropdown menu and choose Printer Features.

Printer: IColor 250 Label Copies: 1 C Print in grayscale (b	Help ③
Pages to Print	Comments & Forms Document and Markups
Current page Pages 1 More Options	Summarize Comments
Page Sizing & Handling (i)	
Size Poster Multiple Booklet	Print
Fit Actual size Shrink oversized pages Custom Scale: 100 %	Printer: IColor 250 Label
Choose paper source by PDF page size	Pages: O All From: 1 to: 1
Orientation: Auto portrait/landscape Portrait	Layout Pages per Sheet: 1
Landscape	Layout Direction:
Page Setup Printer	Two-Sided: Off
Print Printer: IColor 250 Label	Reverse page orientation Flip horizontally
Presets: Default Settings	? PDF V Hide Details Cancel Prin
Pages: All From: 1 to: 1	
Printer Features	
Print Quality: Quality2	
Color Matching: Vivid Photos Color Matching: Vivid Photos Color Matching: Sector Color Matching: Yes Color	

Print Quality

There are 4 levels of print quality in the driver. The lower the Quality, the faster the print. Quality 1 provides the fastest print available while Quality 4 provides the best quality. It is recommended that you experiment with the different levels when designing your label to find a good balance between print quality and print speed.

Color Matching

Best for Graphics mode is best used for graphical images where accurate color reproduction is not as essential. Images printed in this mode will look more vibrant because more ink is being used to produce them. However, printing images of people may produce skin tones that have a reddish tint.

Best for Photos mode is best used for photographic images where accurate color reproduction is very essential. Images printed in this mode will look lighter than those printed in Photo mode. Skin tones especially will look more natural in this mode.

NOTE: Exact color matching of the printed labels to the screen may never be possible since there are factors that affect this out of the drivers control. The surface of the label reacts with the ink in the cartridge to produce the color. For this reason, when printing the same image to different types of labels with different surfaces the printed output can look entirely different.

Ink Saturation

This option controls the amount of ink used when printing an image. The default setting is 100%, which will provide the most accurate color matching. If the ink is not drying fast enough or is bleeding, you can decrease the Ink Saturation to lessen the amount of ink that is applied to the label.

Enable Bidi (Bidirectional) Printing

Set to "Yes" for the fastest print speed. Requires an alignment print after every cartridge change. Set to "No" for better quality print (in some cases).

Section 7: Troubleshooting

7A. Solving Pre-Die-Cut Print Alignment Problems

Image is Vertically Offset (White space can be seen on the top or bottom of the label), the IColor 250 decides where to start printing by detecting the start of a die-cut label, detecting a black mark on the back, or detecting a thru-hole that corresponds to the start of the label. The following items can cause the label sensor to improperly detect the start of a label:

1. TOF Offset. TOF stands for Top of Form and this setting allows you to fine-tune the alignment of your printing on your label stock. This will be factory calibrated. If fine-tuning is needed, increase this setting to move the image down on the label; decrease this setting to move the image up on the label. The unit of measure is 0.1mm.

2. Nonstandard / Non-translucent Backing Material. Test the unit with approved label stock from UNINET (ask tech support to send a sample). If it prints correctly, your label stock may not be compatible. The label sensor needs to see the difference between a label and a backing material by seeing through the label stock for light variations. If it cannot see through the label, problems will arise. If you must use this type of backing, try label stock that has a black mark on the back to show where the label begins. You will need to change the Sensor Type setting in the driver preferences to Reflective if you switch to a label with a black mark on the back.

3. Improper Label Gap Distance. If the gap between labels is too small there will not be enough time for the gap to be detected. See Label Specifications.

4. Page Size is Bigger than Label Stock Size. If the page size set in the driver is larger than the actual label stock, the ink will be printed on the gaps and the sensor will start looking for a gap too late. This can cause label skipping or inconsistent print starting points.

5. Portrait / Landscape. If the Portrait / Landscape setting does not correspond to the label stock installed this will also cause the printer to print over the gap and onto the next label. Make sure this is set correctly.

6. Sensor Position. Circular, nonstandard label shapes or multiple labels across will require precise adjustment of the label sensor. If you are using circular or other non-rectangular die-cut labels see Section 2B for instructions.

The Image is Printing Horizontally Offset

(White space is seen on the left or right side of the label)

Two printer driver settings can affect this issue:

Left Margin Offset. This adjustment is found in the Status Monitor. If you see white space on the right side of the label and overlap on the opposite side, increase the number. If you see white space on the left side of the label and overlap on the opposite side, decrease the number (Negative numbers are allowed).

NOTE: Usually a space on the right side indicates a margin around the label that is not being accounted for. The printer is factory calibrated for a 2mm margin. A larger margin around the label will cause a right-side space.

Page Size. Often the page size is not large enough for the label. If this is the case you may see white space on the right side of the label and no image overlap on the opposite side. This indicates that the page size needs to be increased. Increase the page size through the printer preferences enough to cover the label.

7B. Solving Cut Alignment Offset Problems

Cut alignment is calibrated at the factory. However, it is possible that you may need to adjust the cut line position for certain prints/cuts.

Adjust Cutter Offsets by opening UNINET IColor Print Hub. Go to the Printer Settings tab. Click on the Advanced Settings button. Adjust cutter offsets according to the diagram below. To move the cut to the right, increase the Horizontal Offset. To move the cut to the left, decrease the Horizontal Offset. To move the cut down decrease the horizontal offset. Remember the top of your document prints first so it prints upside down if you are standing in front of the printer.

JSB Serial Number	1	Generate Set
556 Senar Number		
Return user settings to their default values		Restore Factory Defaults
tridge		
Perform Wiper Maintenance if print quality is poor at t beginning of a print	the	Wiper Maintenance
Seconds between Maintenance Spits	3	All Changes Saved.
Pages between Maintenance Wipes	10	C All Changes Saved.
Suppress Alignment		
ck Feed		
Roll Feed Speed (0.1 in/sec)	60	All Changes Saved.
Feed Speed (0.1 in/sec)	60	C All Changes Saved.
Print Speed (0.1 in/sec)	40	C All Changes Saved.
Reverse Speed (0.1 in/sec)	60	C All Changes Saved.
Vertical Print Adjust (FRHH)	-6	All Changes Saved.
Max Label Search Length (inches)	12	C All Changes Saved.
Create loop before printing (Disable for long prints)		
Run a sensor calibration to improve stock loading accuracy. Stock must be removed from printer.		Calibrate Paper Sensor
Cutter		
Knife Pressure	0	All Changes Saved.
Knife Stretch Factor	0	C All Changes Saved.
Horizontal Offset (300 dpi)	8	All Changes Saved.
Vertical Offset (300 dpi)	-11	All Changes Saved.



icolorprint.com

7C. Maintenance

Replacing the Cutter Wear Strip

The wear strip is the surface directly underneath the cutting blade in the cutter mechanism. Over time this strip will wear down due to cutter knife pressure. It can also be damaged if the knife cuts through the liner and contacts the wear strip.

To replace the wear strip, remove any media from the cutter mechanism. Power off the Printer. Push the knife carrier gently to the left. Grab one end of the wear strip and pull it off the cutter. If necessary, use a utility knife to get under the strip to start it. The wear strip is held in place with adhesive so there may be adhesive residue. Clean off the adhesive with isopropyl alcohol.

Remove the liner from the new wear strip. Press the strip into place. Make sure it is fully seated in the recessed pocket.



Wear Strip Location (Red Color is only meant to highlight location)

Replacement Wear Strip

Label Cut Dust

Label cut dust can accumulate at any place along the cut path.

Paper media creates more dust than synthetic material. Dust build-up does not cause any specific immediate problems but it can eventually cause problems with the moving parts and electronics in the cutter.

Periodically vacuum the cutter area and rollers.

Cleaning the Printer

The case of the printer can be cleaned with an ammonia-based window cleaner and a lint-free cloth. Over time, ink overspray may gather at the base of the printer. The printer is designed using a vacuum system to gather most of this ink on a series of saturation pads. Eventually, these pads may need to be replaced. Contact tech support to determine if pad replacement is necessary.

Ink Accumulation - Chutes

Ink build-up can occur in the spit chutes that lead to the ink saturation pads. Pigment Ink tends to build up faster than Dye Ink. Make sure there is a clear path for the ink to reach the pads below. Partially dried ink can accumulate around the sides of the chute. Use a ridged flat edge such as a paring knife to scrape away the ink.



Ink Accumulation – Wipers (A software and firmware update may be required. Run the update first)

If you notice that your print quality is poor at the beginning of a print but gets better as it continues to print, your ink wipers may have accumulated a combination of cut dust and ink. Check the wipers and clean them with rubbing alcohol and a cotton tip cleaner. Wipers are located on the right side of the printer but are normally hidden from view under the cartridge. You will need to put the printer in the wiper maintenance mode.

- 1. Open the top cover.
- 2. Press and hold the pause button for 3 seconds until you see the print carriage move.
- 3. You will now have access to clean the wiper.
- 4. When complete close the cover.

icolorprint.com

7D. Cleaning the Output Cutter

Every 2000 cuts you will be prompted to clean the output cross cutter using a cleaning card. If you have the card, you may follow the prompts to complete the cleaning procedure. Otherwise, you can purchase a pack of ten cleaning cards. Email at sales@icolorprint.com for more information.

To manually perform a cleaning in UNINET IColor PrintHub, go to the Printer Settings tab – Advanced Settings – Output Cutter Cleaning.

C UniNet iColor® PrintHub*		
IColor 250 IColor 250 Label 🗸	IColor 250 Label - Idle	00 5 Digital Die-Cut Media
	Information Driver IColor 250 Label (1.0.1). Firmware 1.41 7/29/2020 (4) 11.19 Serial Number 2200900210 Software Version 1.6.24 Advanced Settings for IColor 250 Label General USB Serial Number Return user settings to their default values Perform Output Cutter maintenance when Output Cutter Cleaning	60 % Z Align Change €teen
Settings	Instructed. A cutter cleaning should be performed once every 2000 cuts. Perform Cutter Maintenance Get a Cleaning Card Adhesive from continuous media may buildup on the output cutter. Cleaning the output cutter regularly may prevent cutter stalls. To perform Output Cutter maintenance, please follow these instructions. A pack of 10 cleaning cards can be ordered. Total Cuts: 0 View Products Utwee My Cleaning Card	

Instructions:

Cleaning Cards are used to clean the output cutter wheel that cuts between each label or at the end of a group of labels. If the cutting wheel cuts through continuous adhesive-backed paper (such as IColor 250 digital-die cutting media), it can accumulate adhesive build-up that will eventually cause cutting problems.

Recommend Cleaning Interval:

Every 2000 Labels UNINET IColor PrintHub software tracks this and will alert you when cleaning is necessary.

Cleaning Cards are used to clean the output cutter wheel that cuts between each label or at the end of a group of labels. If the cutting wheel cuts through continuous adhesive-backed paper (such as IColor 250 digital die-cutting media), it can accumulate adhesive build-up that will eventually cause cutting problems.

Recommend Cleaning Interval:

Every 2000 Labels UNINET IColor PrintHub software tracks this and will alert you when cleaning is necessary.



1. Locate the cleaning card.



2. Peel off the protective strip covering the adhesive.



3. Unload label stock from the printer. Insert the cleaning card into the front output of the printer.



4. When the exposed adhesive strip is aligned with the Output cutter path, open the UNINET IColor PrintHub – select Printer Settings – Advanced. Click on Output Cutter Cleaning. Once the cutter cycles, remove both parts of the card from the printer.

icolorprint.com

7E. Cleaning the Cartridge – Poor Print Quality

It may be necessary to clean the ink cartridge nozzles if you notice reduced print quality, or if you suspect a cartridge nozzle has become slightly dried out or clogged. If the cartridge has been left out of the printer for more than 30 minutes, the ink in the print head nozzles may have dried. If you are having print quality problems, follow the steps below:

- 1. Before moving on to the next step, ensure that the ink level of the color cartridge is more than 10%. If the ink level is lower than 10%, replace the cartridge.
- [] UniNet iColor® PrintHub™ - -IColor 250 IColor 250 Label - Idle Digital Die-Cut Media 100 9 IColor 250 Label ~ Queue Print Alignment Label Feed Printer Settings Queued Jobs: Cancel Name Identifier 60 % Past Jobs: Prints Print Cost¹ Prints per Cartridge¹ Prints Remaining¹ Identifier Ouote Name L Untitled 1 \$0.188 409 270 80 5 Untitled 1 \$0.218 353 233 77 \$0.279 275 64 Ŀ Untitled 1 181 363 62 Ŀ Untitled \$0.212 239 1 448 295 L Untitled 1 \$0.172 60 \$76.95 Restore Default per Cartridge ¹ Calcuations are estimates Print Counter: 3 🔅 Settings
- 2. Try cleaning the cartridge using the clean function in UNINET IColor PrintHub.

3. Determine if printing is now acceptable by printing your image. If the sample has missing colors or voids within a color strip, remove the cartridge from the printer and proceed to step 4.

4. Prepare items needed for the procedure



5. Soak the paper towels in water for 5 seconds.



6. Place one paper towel on cartridge nozzles. Gently press the paper towel with your finger. Leave the paper towel on the nozzles for 30-40 seconds.



7. Wipe nozzles.





- a. Place the second paper towel on a flat/hard surface.
- b. Press the nozzles into the paper towel.
- c. Firmly tap the top of the cartridge three times to force the ink out.
- d. Wipe/Drag the cartridge in the direction indicated.
- e. Repeat until all colors are seen on the paper towel. After wiping the nozzles, the paper towel should show all three colors. If all three colors are present, proceed to step 8. If the paper towel doesn't show all three colors, then repeat step 7. If the paper towel still doesn't show all three colors repeating step 7, then replace the cartridge.



icolorprint.com

8. Dry the cartridge.



Dry excess water from cartridge. Ensure cartridge contacts are completely dry. Printer damage may result if cartridge contacts are not completely dry.

9. Verify cartridge is now functioning properly by printing your label.

7F. Technical Support

If you have difficulties operating your Printer, contact technical support using one of the methods listed below.

Source	Location
UNINET IColor Knowledge Base	www.icolorprint.com/support
Email Support	sales@icolorprint.com
Phone Support	+1 631.590.1040 (Mon - Fri 9 a.m. – 5:30 p.m. EST)

Section 8: Technical Specifications

PRINT SPEED ¹	Pre-die cut media: Up to 4.5" per second
	Digital die-cut speeds are dependent upon the image being cut
PRINT RESOLUTION	Up to 4800 x 1200 dpi
PRINT TECHNOLOGY	Thermal Inkjet
INK TYPES	Dye-based CMY, Pigment CMY
LABEL TYPES	Pre-die cut, continuous and black marks
STANDARD CONNECTIVITY	USB 2.0 (USB 3.0 compatible)
PRINT WIDTH	0.5" (13mm) - 4.25" (108mm) Digital Die Cut media width is fixed at
(DIGITAL DIE-CUTTING)	4.25" However, smaller size labels can be cut from the 4.25" media.
	See Note on Page 17.
PRINT WIDTH	0.5" (13mm) - 5" (127mm)
(PRE-DIE CUT)	
MEDIA WIDTH	Pre-Die-cut: 2.125" (54mm) to 5.25" (133mm)
	Digital Die-cut: 4.75" (121mm) (4.25" Printable)
MAXIMUM PRINT LENGTH	12" (305mm)
OPERATING SYSTEM	Windows 7, 8, or 10 (64-bit Only) Mac OS 10.11 or higher
DIMENSIONS	13.6 W x 17" D x 9.5" H (345mm W x 432mm D x 242mm H)
WEIGHT	12.5 lbs (5.7kg)
POWER	Input: 100 – 240 VAC, 50/60 Hz, 60 watts, Output: 12 volt 5 amp
WARRANTY	One-year parts and labor; lifetime phone, chat, and email support
OPERATING TEMPERATURE	50 to 95° F (10 to 35° C)
RECOMMENDED OPERATING	61 to 87° F (16 to 32° C)
TEMPERATURE	
STORAGE TEMPERATURE	-4 to 140° F (-20 to 60° C)
OPERATING HUMIDITY	10 to 60% RH (non-condensing)
STORAGE HUMIDITY	10 to 80% RH (non-condensing)
CERTIFICATIONS	UL, UL-C, CE, FCC Class A
REPLACEMENT INK	UNINET IColor Pigment
CARTRIDGES	UNINET IColor Dye

FCC

NOTE: This equipment has been tested and found to comply with the limits for a Class A digital device, according to part 15 of the FCC Rules. These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against harmful interference when the equipment is operated in a commercial environment. This equipment generates, uses, and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used per the instruction manual, may cause harmful interference to radio communications. Operation of this equipment in a residential area is likely to cause harmful interference in which case the user will be required to correct the interference at his own expense.

Revised as of January 2021